
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, December 10, 2015, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips (City of Marysville), 

MORPC Chair 

 

1:40 p.m. 3. Community Leader Spotlight: Financing Resources for Businesses - 

Chad Smith, Ohio Air Quality Development Authority Executive 

Director 

 

1:50 p.m. 4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of November 12, 2015 Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Proposed Resolution 19-15: “ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2015 

TITLE VI PROGRAM” 

 

1:51 p.m. 5. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 State of the Region Awards 

 

2:00 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 21-15: “ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL BUDGET 

AND FUND ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF 

THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 2016”- 

Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC Chief of Staff & Finance Director    

 

 Committees 

 

2:15 p.m. 7. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips (City of Marysville), 

MORPC Chair  

2:16 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips (City of Marysville), MORPC Chair 

2:17 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 Energy & Air Quality – Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

December 10, 2015 

Page 2 

 

2:22 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of November 12, 2015 Transportation Policy 

Committee Meeting Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-21-15: “AMENDING THE STATE 

FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” 

 

2:23 p.m. d. Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) – Thea Walsh, MORPC 

Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

 

2:30 p.m. e. Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Update – David Paul, CAC 

Chair 

 

2:35 p.m. 8. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips (City of 

Marysville), MORPC Chair 

 

2:36 p.m. 9. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:37 p.m. 10. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher (City of 

Dublin), Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Proposed Resolution 20-15: “ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2016 

PUBLIC POLICY AGENDA” – Steve Campbell (City of Columbus), 

Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

b. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter 

and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Director 

 

2:50 p.m. 11. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Jim Schimmer (Franklin 

County), Sustainability Advisory Committee Vice-Chair 

 

2:55 p.m. 12. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Eric Phillips (City of Marysville), MORPC Chair 

 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, January 14, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

December 10, 2015 

Page 3 

 

When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, November 12, 2015 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Jeff Benton 

Pat Blayney 

Stacey Boumis 

Randy Bowman 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Ron Bullard 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Franklin Christman 

Derrick Clay 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

John Eisel 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Bill LaFayette 

Greg Lestini 

Barb Lewis 

Brian Lorenz 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Cornell Robertson for 

  Dean Ringle 

Jim Schimmer 

Ashley Senn 

David Simmons 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Nancy White

 

Associate Members 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Policy Committee Members 

David Paul Thom Slack Curtis Stitt 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Rob Powell 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

Guests 

John Gettings 

David Goodman, ODSA 

Jung Kim, Columbus 2020 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:34 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance. 

Chair Phillips congratulated those members re-elected to their offices. 

 

Community Leader Spotlight: Ohio Development Services Agency Initiatives – David Goodman, Ohio 

Development Services Agency Director 

David Goodman spoke about the Ohio Development Services Agency (ODSA) which provides incentives and 

investments to spur economic development.  The Easy Program Finder on the ODSA’s website was created to 

http://development.ohio.gov/#MODAL


Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2015 

Page 2 

 
help communities find ODSA’s programs and how they can work together. A new $20 million Abandoned Gas 

Station Redevelopment Program is about to be rolled out. Mr. Goodman commended MORPC on their 

collaborative work; collaboration like this is not seen in other areas in the state. Mr. Goodman encouraged 

members to contact ODSA for help in determining which programs work best for their communities. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Nancy White; motion passed.   

 

Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

At their last meeting, the Regional Policy Roundtable adopted the 2016 Public Policy Agenda being presented 

at this meeting. Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher reported that Ohio Municipal League (OML) Executive Director Sue 

Cave is retiring in March 2016. The OML Board is looking for input on the search for a new executive director. 

There are a number of openings soon coming on the roundtable. Contact William Murdock or Laura Koprowski 

with suggestions. Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher announced that her last meeting as Regional Policy Roundtable 

Chair was In October; she did not run for re-election.  Steve Campbell thanked Ms. Chinnici-Zuercher for her 

leadership of the roundtable.   

 

 Draft 2016 Public Policy Agenda – Steve Campbell, Public Policy Agenda Working Group Chair 

Steve Campbell gave a presentation on the 2016 Draft Public Policy Agenda highlighting the process, 

working group members, and significant changes from 2015. Significant changes include: 

o Added Goal 1 objectives to promote insight2050 and infrastructure 

o Reworded Goal 2 and Goal 3 

o Added Goal 3 objective to protect green space 

o Added Goal 4 objective to finance energy infrastructure improvements 

o Under Collaboration collapsed three sections into Sustainable Growth 

 

 Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 
Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o Federal transportation authorization bill 

o State legislative activity 

o Ballot Issues 2 and 3 election results 

o WOTUS 

o Columbus Region Coalition Letter 

o License plate fees 

o Healthy Water Ohio initiative 

o SB 198 – Non-residents/municipality taxes 

 

See the November 2015 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock added his congratulations to re-elected/newly elected members and their families. 

Congratulations to the City of Columbus and all the Scioto Greenways partners on the opening of the project 

on November 10, 2015. MORPC was a funding partner on the project. 

 

William Murdock represents MORPC on the OSU Airport Community Council. Earlier this week the Council 

toured OSU Airport’s facilities. Arrangements are being made for them to present to the Commission. 

 

The Competitive Advantage Process project timeline has been adjusted to launch in January 2016. 

 

The Columbus Partnership and Columbus 2020 are soliciting requests for Capital Bill projects for Central Ohio. 

MORPC will help in mapping and evaluating the projects. The application deadline is November 23, 2015. 

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-12-2015DraftPPA.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-12-2015LegUp.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2015 

Page 3 

 
Work continues on insight2050, Phase 2. MORPC Team Members are developing an Activity Area Analysis and 

Infill Directory. Phase 3 begins early next year and will include an age-friendly initiative in partnership with the 

City of Columbus. A new communications strategy has been crafted for next year; more focused on real time 

information and helping communities be better prepared to handle questions from residents and businesses. 

 

MORPC has very important committees in transportation and sustainability that could use representatives 

from different communities. Appointment cycles usually start at the beginning of the calendar year. The 

representative does not have to be from your government; they can be a resident or business representative 

from your community.   

  

Upcoming major events include: 

 CMC Forum: Rerouting Transit: Modes that Move Us, Wednesday, November 18, 2015, 12-1:15 p.m., 

Athletic Club 

 ULI/MORPC Event; Real Estate Trends in Central Ohio, Thursday, December 3, 2015, 4:30-6:30 p.m., 

Athletic Club  

 Economic Development 411 (ED 411), Friday, December 4, 2015, 8 a.m.-1 p.m., The Ohio Union at 

Ohio State University 

 

The 2016 State of the Region Luncheon is Friday, May 6, 2015. The keynote speaker is Dr. James H. Johnson, 

Jr. from the University of North Carolina Chapel Hill. He will speak on demographics. We are looking for 

sponsors. Information for the 2016 State of the Region Award Nominations will be out soon. The awards are: 

Regional Leadership Award, William C. Habig Collaborative Achievement Award, and the William H. Anderson 

Excellence in Public Service Award. Nominations are due December 2015. 

 
Committees 

 

Data Site Task Force – Nancy Reger; Anthony Jones & Jung Kim, Co-Chairs 

Proposed Resolution 18-15 is to accept the findings of the Data Site Task Force and permit MORPC Team 

Members to work with the Bylaws Committee to recommend changes to create a new committee – the 

Regional Data Advisory Committee.  Nancy Reger recognized Rob Powell who was the MORPC Lead Team 

Member for the Task Force. Ms. Reger introduced Task Force Co-Chairs Anthony Jones and Jung Kim who 

presented the Data Task Force Findings and Next Steps. The findings confirm the need to create a Regional 

Data Site, and that a new committee should be formed at MORPC for overseeing the site development and 

management. 

 

 Proposed Resolution 18-15: “ACCEPT THE FINDINGS OF THE REGIONAL DATA TASK FORCE AND ADOPT 

CHANGES TO MORPC BYLAWS TO CREATE A REGIONAL DATA ADVISORY COMMITTEE” 

Karen Angelou made a motion to approve Resolution 18-15, second by Steve Stolte; motion passed.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee met October 20, 2015 and discussed the Clean Power Plan. The Clean 

Power Plan will use the Clean Air Act to regulate carbon emissions nationwide. The Sustainability Advisory 

Committee, along with the Energy & Air Quality Working Group, will study the plan to determine the plan’s 

impacts on Central Ohio. MORPC Team Members are working proactively with Ohio EPA on compliance 

activities for the development of a State Implementation Plan. The Committee, in coordination with the 

Regional Policy Roundtable, is evaluating the Energy Mandates Study Report.  

 

On October 20, 2015, MORPC hosted a Weatherization Showcase in Madison Township. The showcase, which 

highlights MORPC’s energy efficiency program, received great media coverage. Mr. Stolte thanked Susan 

Brobst and Madison Township for their assistance with the showcase. 

 

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-12-2015DTFFindings.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2015 

Page 4 

 
 

Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:45 p.m. The session 

adjourned at 3:03 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, 

second by Erik Janas; motion passed. 

 

Other Business – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 
Chair Phillips recognized MORPC staff for their work supporting MORPC committees. Chair Phillips recognized 

and thanked veterans and those currently serving in the military. 

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 3:05 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea Walsh 

Director of Transpiration Systems and Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

December 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 19-15: "ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2015 TITLE VI 

PROGRAM" 

 

 

This resolution is to approve the Title VI/Non-Discrimination Program at MORPC. 

Given that MORPC receives and sub allocates Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

funds, MORPC must fulfill the Title VI requirements and guidelines of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964. 

 

Federal regulations require MORPC to produce a Title VI monitoring program which 

must be approved by MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee every three years. 

 

Items required for a Title VI Program in a metropolitan planning organization (MPO) 

include: 

 A copy of MORPC’s Title VI notice 

 MORPC’s Title VI discrimination complaint process 

 A list of public transportation related Title VI investigations, complaints, or 

lawsuits 

 MORPC’s public participation plan 

 MORPC’s plan for providing language assistance for persons with limited 

English proficiency 

 A table depicting racial breakdown of minorities on relevant MORPC 

committees 

 A description of efforts to ensure subrecipients are complying with Title VI 

 A demographic profile of the metropolitan area 

 A description of the procedures by which the mobility needs of minority 

populations are identified and considered within the planning process  

 Demographic maps that overlay with minority and non-minority populations 

that demonstrate the impact of state and federal funds in aggregate for 

public transportation managed by the MPO 

 Analyze the impacts of federal funds spent and identify any disparate impacts 

on the basis of race, color, or national origin, and, if so, identify a substantial 

legitimate justification for the disparate impact 



 

 

Resolution 19-15 

Memo 

Page 2 

 

 A description of the procedures the MPO uses to pass through FTA financial 

assistance 

 MORPC’s process to provide assistance to potential subrecipients applying 

for funding 

 

MORPC staff believes MORPC is in compliance with the Title VI requirements. 

 

 

Attachment: Resolution 19-15 

   



 
 

RESOLUTION 19-15 

 

“ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2015 TITLE VI PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, in October 2014 the Governor of Ohio appointed the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission as Designated Recipient ID No. 1310 for the Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) 

Section 5310 (Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities) funds for the 

Columbus Urbanized Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a primary recipient of the Section 5310 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

funds that are distributed to sub recipients; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the U.S Department of 

Transportation’s implementing regulations; and  

 

WHEREAS, the FTA requires all recipients document their compliance by submitting a Title VI 

Program according to the guidelines provided in FTA Circular 4702.1B to their FTA regional civil 

rights officer once every three years; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it approves MORPC’s 2015 Title VI/Non-Discrimination Program dated 

November 2015. 

 

Section 2. That it directs staff to implement, monitor and recommend updates to the Program 

as needed. 

 

Section 3. That it directs staff to transmit this resolution and program to the FTA. 

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Effective date: December 10, 2015 

Submitted by: Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Prepared by:  Bernice Cage, Public Information & Diversity Manager, Public & Government 

   Affairs 

Mary Ann Frantz, Alternative Transportation Manager, Transportation 

Systems & Funding  

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 10, 2015 
Attachment:  2015 Title VI/Non-Discrimination Program 



  

 

Title VI/Non-Discrimination 
Program at MORPC 

 

(Focus on Metropolitan Planning Organization) 

 

November 2015 

 Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 FTA Recipient ID: 1310 

 Columbus, Ohio 

ssaunders
Typewritten Text
Resolution 19-15Attachment



MORPC Title VI Program Page ii 

 

Title VI1/Non-Discrimination Program  

at the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
(Focus on Metropolitan Planning Organization) 

 

Report Prepared by MORPC 

November 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report was prepared by the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC), 111 Liberty St., Columbus, 

Ohio 43215, 614-228-2663.  Funding was provided by the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit 

Administration, Ohio Department of Transportation, and Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, Licking and Union 

Counties.  The report reflects the views and policies of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission. 

In accordance with requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation, MORPC does not discriminate on 

the basis of age, race, color, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, familial status, ancestry, military 

status, religion or disability in programs, services or in employment.  Information on non-discrimination and 

related MORPC policies and procedures is available at www.morpc.org under About MORPC/Policies.  

                                                           
1 Title VI of the U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964 

http://www.morpc.org/


MORPC Title VI Program Page iii 

There are many forms of illegal discrimination based on race, color, or 

national origin that can limit the opportunity of minorities to gain equal 

access to services and programs.  Among other things, in operating a 

federally-assisted program, a recipient cannot, on the basis of race, 

color, or national origin, either directly or through contractual means:  

 Deny program services, aids, or benefits; 

 Provide a different service, aid, or benefit, or provide them in a 

manner different than they are provided to others; or 

 Segregate or separately treat individuals in any matter related to the 

receipt of any service, aid, or benefit.  

U.S. Department of Justice 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page iv 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

A. This PROGRAM ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

B. Civil Rights Act of 1964  and Title VI ............................................................................................................. 1 

C. Authorities ....................................................................................................................................................... 3 

D. State of Ohio Non-Discrimination Laws ......................................................................................................... 4 

E. MORPC Organization and Funding ................................................................................................................ 4 

II. Title VI Organization at MORPC ....................................................................................................... 9 

A. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 

B. Key Staff Responsibilities .............................................................................................................................. 9 

III. Key MPO Title VI Activities ............................................................................................................ 10 

A. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 10 

B. Planning Process .......................................................................................................................................... 10 

1. Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 10 

2. Data Collection ......................................................................................................................................... 11 

3. Public Involvement ................................................................................................................................... 12 

C. Diversity and Inclusion Plan ............................................................................................................................. 14 

IV. Other Title VI-Related Responsibilities at MORPC ........................................................................ 16 

A. Title VI RESOLUTION, Policy Statement and Assurances ........................................................................... 16 

B. On-site Title VI Federal or State Reviews..................................................................................................... 16 

C. Special Grants .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

D. Complaint Process ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

E. Notifying Beneficiaries of Protection Under Title VI .................................................................................... 18 

F. Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and Other Communication Issues ........................................................ 19 

G. Annual Title VI Report for ODOT ................................................................................................................... 19 

H. Contract Procuedures................................................................................................................................... 19 

 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page v 

SUMMARY OF MORPC ONGOING TITLE VI-RELATED ACTIVITIES 

Name Description Date 

MORPC Title VI Policy 

Statement 

MORPC is required to maintain a statement signed by Executive Director (ED) stating 

MORPC’s commitment to Title VI. 
December 

2015 

Title VI Assurances DOT Title VI assurances are required by FHWA and FTA.  MORPC includes these with the 

annual MPO self-certification resolution. 
May 2015 

Data Collection MORPC is required to collect and map data on Title VI-protected populations in the 

planning area.  This is an on-going activity of the transportation department. 
Ongoing 

Public Involvement 

Plan 

MORPC is required to proactively encourage public participation – seeking out and 

considering the needs of those traditionally-underserved – the transportation 

department maintains a separate public involvement plan. 

September 

2015 

Title VI External 

Complaint Process 

MORPC is required to maintain a complaint process.   Ongoing 

Beneficiary Title VI 

Notifications 

MORPC is required to let beneficiaries know MORPC’s obligations in regards to Title VI 

and how complaints can be filed.   
Ongoing 

LEP (Limited English 

Proficiency) 

MORPC is required to take sound measures and reasonable steps to serve the non-

English speaking populations in the area.  MORPC has taken some steps to better reach 

out to these populations and to produce some materials in different languages. 

Ongoing 

ODOT Title VI Report ODOT requires this report annually.  It is included as an appendix in the transportation 

planning work program document. 
May 2015 

Contracts, RFPs, RFQs 

Reviews 

MORPC contracts, RFPs and RFQs are required to include specific Title VI related 

language.  Individual departments and the finance director are responsible for making 

sure that this is done correctly. 

Ongoing 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page 1 

I. INTRODUCTION 

A. THIS PROGRAM 

This program, in response to FTA C4702.13, provides an overview of the responsibilities that the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) has in regards to the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (and 

related law) and how these responsibilities are carried out by MORPC.  The program focuses 

primarily on Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and on the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

functions at MORPC (see U.S. Code Title 23, section 134 and Title 49, section 5303).  MORPC 

documents some of its non-discrimination-related activities in other reports and these are 

referenced and/or the current versions are included herein.   

The information presented in this program is current as of the date of the report and will continue to 

provide an overview of Title VI and related non-discrimination activities and requirements.   However, 

all of the information is subject to change and revision in accordance with new legislation, rules and 

policies at the federal, state, or MORPC levels, or due to MORPC updates of various documents.  

Therefore, it is strongly recommended that the MORPC staff or MORPC website and other internet 

links in Appendix A be consulted for the latest information. 

This program is intended to serve three primary audiences and purposes: 

 Federal and State Oversight Agencies – To provide information to state and federal oversight 

agencies on how MORPC carries out its responsibilities in regards to Title VI and related non-

discrimination requirements. 

 MORPC Staff – As a reference for MORPC staff on Title VI-related requirements and 

responsibilities and procedures that MORPC follows related to non-discrimination. 

 General Public - Information for the general public on the non-discrimination regulations that 

MORPC is obligated  to follow (due to being a federal fund recipient and a public entity) and 

how MORPC responds to these requirements. 

It should be noted that MORPC is responsible, contractually, to various jurisdictions in carrying out 

and properly and sensitively following non-discrimination requirements.  The state and federal 

governments have significant oversight responsibility for MORPC in regards to non-discrimination, 

and for some MORPC funding sources, local governments or other entities also may have an 

oversight role. Appendix B. 

B. CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964  AND TITLE VI 

At a time when significant amounts of open, overt and even government-sanctioned discrimination 

still existed against Americans of African descent across the United States, the U.S. Congress 

passed the landmark Civil Rights Act of 1964.  President Lyndon Johnson signed the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964 into law on July 2, 1964. 

In considering the Title VI legislation, one senator addressed how North Carolina hospitals received 

substantial federal monies for construction, that such hospitals discriminated against blacks as 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 2 

patients and as medical staff, and that, in the absence of legislation, judicial action was the only 

means to end these discriminatory practices: 

That is why we need Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, H.R. 7152 - to prevent such discrimination where 

Federal funds are involved. . . . Title VI is sound; it is morally right; it is legally right; it is 

constitutionally right. . . . What will it accomplish? It will guarantee that the money collected by 

colorblind tax collectors will be distributed by Federal and State administrators who are equally 

colorblind. Let me say it again:  The title has a simple purpose – to eliminate discrimination in 

Federally-financed programs. 

Full integration and equal rights for blacks had reached an unstoppable momentum despite the 

lingering efforts of some governments and individuals to maintain and justify segregationist 

practices and policies of the past.  Today, discrimination against various groups, often in a less 

blatant way than in 1964 and usually not sanctioned by law, continues as a significant issue.  

Unintentional discrimination, perhaps through policies or procedures that have the unintended result 

of discriminating against particular persons or groups, is also an issue today. 

The Civil Rights Act of 1964 included eleven titles.  Title VI, the primary focus of this program 

because of its particular applicability to the MPO and MORPC, addressed discrimination in federally-

funded programs and activities.  A widely-used passage related to Title VI sums up what the title is 

about: 

No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of or be otherwise subjected to 

discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance (42 

USC 2000 Section 601) 

This made entities that receive federal funding, such as MORPC, directly subject to the federal Civil 

Rights Act and requirements to operate in accordance with federal non-discrimination law.  Current 

Title VI law requires non-discrimination in all programs and activities, whether federally-funded or 

not, of those who receive federal funds.   

The term "program or activity" and the term "program" mean all of the operations of: 

a.  A department, agency, special purpose district, or other instrumentality of a state or of a local 

government; or 

b. The entity of such state or local government that distributes such assistance and each such 

department or agency (and each other state or local government entity) to which the assistance 

is extended, in the case of assistance to a state or local government; 

Any part of which is extended federal financial assistance. 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-4a(1)  

In the 50-plus intervening years, following the passage of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, the specific 

applicability of the Act has been clarified or expanded to include more than race, color and national 

origin.   Discrimination protections based on age, handicap/disability, sex, religion, limited English 

proficiency, and income level have also been included in various federal statutes, regulations, 

executive orders, and policies.   



MORPC Title VI Program Page 3 

MORPC and other federal fund recipients must adjust their programs and policies to conform with 

these requirements, as well.  Federal, state and local discrimination prohibitions against lesbian, 

gay, bi-sexual, and transgender (LGBT) individuals also are common (e.g., see June 2010 HUD press 

release No. 10-119).   

Many programs have two recipients. The primary recipient or conduit directly receives the federal 

financial assistance. The primary recipient then distributes the federal assistance to a subrecipient 

to carry out a program.  Both the primary recipient and subrecipient must act in accordance with Title 

VI.  MORPC is a primary and  sub-recipient. 

The specific Title VI-related activities discussed in this program are mostly in response to regulations 

and directives of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), particularly the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  DOT Title VI implementing 

regulations are contained in the Code of Federal Regulations, 49 CFR 21. 

C. AUTHORITIES 

Most federal agencies have adopted regulations that prohibit recipients of federal funds from using 

criteria or methods of administering their programs that have the effect of subjecting individuals to 

discrimination based on race, color, or national origin.  The Supreme Court has held that such 

regulations may validly prohibit practices having a disparate impact on protected groups, even if the 

actions or practices are not intentionally discriminatory. Guardians, 463 U.S. 582; Alexander v. 

Choate, 469 U.S. at 292-94; see Elston v. Talladega County Board of Education, 997 F.2d 1394, 

1406 (11th Cir.), reh'g denied, 7 F.3d 242 (11th Cir. 1993).  

While each federal agency extending federal financial assistance has primary responsibility for 

implementing Title VI with respect to its recipients, overall coordination in identifying legal and 

operational standards, and ensuring consistent application and enforcement, rests with the Civil 

Rights Division of the Department of Justice. 

Title VI claims against an entity such as MORPC may be proven under two primary theories:  

 Intentional discrimination/disparate treatment; and  

 Disparate impact/effects.  

The first refers to intentional discrimination based on race, color, or national origin.  The second 

refers to actions that use a neutral procedure or practice that has a disparate impact on individuals 

of a particular race, color, or national origin, and when such a practice lacks a "substantial legitimate 

justification." 

The documents below are some of the major federal civil rights-related legislation, regulations, 

executive orders, and federal agency guidance that MORPC is subject to.  These are generally listed 

chronologically by date enacted and are not all-inclusive.  See Appendix A for links to actual 

documents and other related information. 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000) – prohibits discrimination on the grounds 

of race, color, or national origin 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 4 

 1970 Uniform Act (42 USC 4601) – related to persons displaced/property acquired  

 Federal-aid Highway Act of 1973 (23 U.S.C. 324) – prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) – prohibits discrimination based 

on handicap/disability 

 Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101) – prohibits discrimination based on age 

 Implementing Regulations (49 CFR 1.51, 49 CFR 21 and 23 CFR 200) – U.S. DOT and FHWA 

Title VI implementing regulations  

 Federal Transit Laws Title 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 as amended by MAP-21 

 Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (P.L. 100-259) – restored original intent and scope of Title VI 

to include all programs and activities of federal-aid recipients and contractors whether federally-

funded or not 

 Fair Housing Act Amendments of 1988 (42 U.S.C. 3601-3631) – adds religion as a protected 

group for relocation purposes  

 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-336) – non-discrimination based on disability  

 DOT Order 1000.12 – implementation of DOT Title VI Program  

 Executive Order 12250 – (28 CFR 42.401) Department of Justice coordination of enforcement of 

non-discrimination in federally assisted programs 

 Executive Order 12898 (EJ) in 1994 – federal actions to address equity and fairness in minority 

and low-income populations (“Environmental Justice”) 

 Executive Order 13166 (LEP) in 2000 – requires meaningful access to services for people with 

limited English proficiency 

D. STATE OF OHIO NON-DISCRIMINATION LAWS 

The State of Ohio also includes many of the same non-discrimination requirements as the federal 

government in various sections of the Ohio Revised Code, Ohio Administrative Code, Executive 

Orders, and other documents.  The location for some of this information is Section 4112 of the ORC.  

MORPC, in all of its functions, is also subject to following these state laws and regulations. 

E. MORPC ORGANIZATION AND FUNDING 

MORPC is organized per sections 713.21 and 713.23 of the Ohio Revised Code as a “Regional 

Planning Commission” (RPC) and serves member jurisdictions in the Central Ohio area.  The MORPC 

Transportation Policy Committee acts as the “Metropolitan Planning Organization” or “MPO” for the 

Columbus Urbanized Area (see “Prospectus” in MORPC Transportation Planning Work Program – link 

in Appendix A) as designated by the Ohio Governor and U.S. Department of Transportation.   



MORPC Title VI Program Page 5 

MORPC has served as the MPO (or “Transportation Study”) since 1964 and as a planning entity per 

the Ohio Revised Code since 1943 (under different organizational arrangements and names).  The 

current organization, under the name “Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission,” was formed in 

1969. 

MORPC currently includes four major “production” departments:  1) Transportation Systems and 

Funding (the “MPO”); 2) Data and Mapping, 3) Planning and Environment 4) Energy and Air Quality 

includes a home weatherization and housing rehab component, and within Transportation Systems 

and Funding there is a separate demand management program that provides ridesharing services in 

12 counties.  MORPC also includes several “support” departments including Executive Management, 

Finance, Information Technology, and Public and Government Affairs.   

MORPC is an independent, voluntary, membership-run planning entity and receives part of its 

operations funding from member dues, which are also used to match grants.  The MPO service area 

includes Delaware and Franklin Counties, and portions of northwest Fairfield County, southeast 

Union County and southwest Licking County.   

The current MPO geographic area was generally established in 1973 except that portions of middle 

and northern Delaware County, not previously included in the MPO, were added in the early 1990s.  

Due to the increasing spread of urban growth beyond the central county in the past decade or so, 

and due to the larger 8-county U.S. Census  Bureau-defined metropolitan statistical area, MPO work 

considers and sometimes includes, or extends into, areas beyond the MPO boundary. 

MORPC is governed by a “commission” (or “board”) composed of officials appointed from member 

governments per MORPC bylaws and articles of agreement.  The MPO is governed by the 

“Transportation Policy Committee” under advisement from the Transportation Advisory Committee 

and the Community Advisory Committee.  The Transpiration Policy Committee includes the members 

of the Commission who are from geographic areas within the MPO boundary and some additional 

members, per Transportation Policy Committee bylaws. 

Board Diversity – To understand and effectively serve the needs of a diverse population, an 

organization’s board needs to have the perspective of diverse voices at the table.  In 2014, MORPC 

conducted a survey of its Board members which also requested racial and ethnic minority 

representation. Out of a total of 106 respondents: 

 30% female 

 70% male 

 8% racial/ethnic minority combined 

 34% between the ages of 25-44 

 52% between the ages of 45-64 

 15% the age of 65 or older 

MORPC operates differently from most public entities in that agency funding comes not from a 

committed or dedicated tax source but from the voluntary participation of local governments, and 

from performing work associated with various grants and agreements, which can change over time.  

These grants and agreements are from federal agencies, the State of Ohio, local governments, utility 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 6 

companies, foundations, and from other public and private entities, to perform, implement or 

administer specific programs, services or studies.   

The funding for a large portion of this work comes directly or indirectly from the federal government, 

often through state agency recipients.  Sometimes these funds come through other subrecipients.  

The primary federal agencies that provide funding to MORPC include the Department of 

Transportation (DOT), the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Department of 

Energy (DOE), and the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).  MORPC currently operates 

three major programs, which normally provide the bulk of federal funding to the agency: 

 Transportation/MPO functions funded by the DOT 

 Home Weatherization program funded by the DOE & HHS 

 Housing programs funded by HUD 

 

Section 5310 Funds - 

 

PROVIDING ASSISTANCE TO SUBRECIPIENTS Chapter III, 11  

 

MORPC is the Designated and Primary Recipient of FTA Section 5310 funds in the Columbus, Ohio 

urbanized area.  MORPC passes Section 5310 funds through to subrecipients as required by the 

grant program.  MORPC is in the process of developing agreements/contracts using FFY 2013 funds 

executed with FTA with the following subrecipients. 

 

 The Alpha Group of Delaware County 

 Canal Winchester Senior Transportation Services 

 Franklin County Board of Developmental Disabilities  

 Clintonville Beechwold Community Resource Center 

 Heritage Day Health Centers 

 LifeCare Alliance 

 The Council of Older Adults of Delaware County 

 Association for the Developmentally Disabled 

 

Subrecipients are to be held to the same non-discrimination standards and accountable to the FTA 

Master Agreement as well as more defined guidelines based on their particular projects as MORPC 

when using these funds.  Each subrecipient is also responsible to complete FTA’s Certification and 

Assurances each federal fiscal year as they become available. 

Subrecipients can access MORPC’s Title VI notice of rights, complaint form and procedures and 

adopted policies at www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies.  All Title VI complaints regarding 

services provided with Section 5310 funds are to be addressed to MORPC as well as the recipient 

using MORPC’s complaint procedures. 

Sample notices, procedures, demographic and other information will be coordinated and provided by 

MORPC to assist subrecipients in their Title VI compliance. 

 

MONITORING SUBRECIPIENTS Chapter III, 12 

MORPC will develop a process and schedule to track subrecipient’s Title VI Program compliance and 

submissions.   MORPC’s grant administrator will perform site visits as appropriate to each 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 7 

subrecipient to ensure their projects are in compliance with the signed agreement and FTA 

standards.  The administrator will receive monthly or quarterly reports that will be entered into FTA 

TEAM quarterly.  

As required by the project, selected subrecipients will submit invoices to MORPC for reimbursement.  

Additional information may be requested in the event documentation is needed for reimbursement 

to ensure they are in compliance. 

 

Conduct Equity Analysis for Determination of Site or Location of Facilities  Chapter III ,13 

MORPC and its subrecipients do not use FTA funds to determine the location of a new facility or 

make renovations to existing facility.  No projects require an equity analysis for land acquisition and 

the displacement of persons from their residences or businesses. 

Procedures MORPC uses to pass through FTA financial assistance to subrecipients in a non-

discriminatory manner Chapter VI, 2, c (2) 

MORPC has a Section 5310 Program Management Plan (PMP) approved by FTA.  The PMP 

documents the pass through of FTA financial assistance to subrecipients in a nondiscriminatory 

manner.  As part of the Section 5310 funding request process, Title VI data collection and general 

reporting requirements, Limited English Proficiency Requirements and FTA Certification and 

Assurances is required.  A description of procedures to request funding is also included in the PMP.  

See Appendix K. 

When funding becomes available, MORPC submits a press release, posts on MORPC’s website, and 

social media, sends email blasts and mails post cards to potential subrecipients.  MORPC’s email 

and USPS mailing lists are inclusive of minority population organizations.     

Each applicant is required as part of its Section 5310 funding request to provide information relating 

to the clientele to be served by the project, including the number of minority individuals broken down 

by Black, Hispanic, Asian or Pacific Islander, Native American, and Asian-Indian population groups. 

MORPC’s Title VI complaint process will be used to solicit any complaints based on perceived 

discrimination based on race, color, or national origin. As a Designated and Primary Recipient, 

MORPC will monitor subrecipients with regard to Title VI.    

 
Procedures MORPC uses to provide assistance to potential subrecipients applying for funding, 

including its efforts to assist applicants that would serve predominantly minority populations.  

Chapter VI, 2, c (3) 

As stated in MORPC’s PMP when the funding cycles are announced the selection process is open 

and transparent, and every effort will be made to reach multiple agencies that provide services to 

the primary target populations, ensuring equity of access to the benefits of the grant programs 

among eligible groups, as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act.  

MORPC contacts interested parties representing all segments of the study area, including advocates 

for people with disabilities, the elderly and minority populations have been maintained. In addition to 

mailing announcements and web postings, funding availability will be communicated using MORPC’s 

Transportation Public Involvement Plan. Appendix G. 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 8 

 

The selection process includes an informational workshop where outlining the development of 

project and criteria is offered. The workshop and assistance in developing proposals are advertised 

and offered to all interested parties.  

 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page 9 

II. TITLE VI ORGANIZATION AT MORPC 

A. INTRODUCTION 

In general, routine Title VI and related non-discrimination responsibilities at MORPC are handled in a 

decentralized manner, being primarily the responsibility of individual departments.  This reflects the 

reality that MORPC operates through many different agreements, contracts and programs, and each 

of them may have somewhat different requirements and responsibilities relating to Title VI and non-

discrimination.   

Though MORPC is one entity, each production department operates their programs in different 

functional areas, somewhat independently utilizing different funding sources and agreements, and 

under varying requirements, roles, and constraints, which individual departments are most familiar 

with.  This affects how Title VI responsibilities are organized at MORPC.   

It should be noted that all of MORPC, without exception and across all departments, is subject to 

following federal Title VI and non-discrimination requirements.  In that MORPC receives any federal 

funds, it is subject to these regulations, but in fact, MORPC receives significant amounts of federal 

funds that infiltrate every activity and operation of MORPC.  This makes the entire agency subject to 

the related federal laws in all its operations. 

B. KEY STAFF RESPONSIBILITIES 

As shown in the MORPC Title VI organization chart in Appendix F, the agency Executive Director, who 

is hired by the Commission, has overall responsibility for non-discrimination and implementation of 

the Title VI program.  Directly reporting to the Executive Director on non-discrimination and civil rights 

issues is the Director of Human Resources, Administrative Services and Information Technology who 

serves as the overall agency “Title VI Coordinator.”   

This person is the key contact person that has general responsibility over civil rights-related and non-

discrimination issues that may arise within the agency.  This person is also responsible for 

employment and hiring and for the agency’s Equal Employment Opportunity reporting. 

Two other key staff members related to Title VI, who also report directly to the Executive Director, are 

the Chief of Staff & Finance Director and the Director of Public and Government Affairs.  The Chief of 

Staff & Finance Director is responsible for helping to make sure the agency meets Title VI 

requirements in purchasing and in professional service or other contracts.  The Director of Public and 

Government Affairs is responsible for Title VI as it relates to public outreach and Title VI notifications. 

MORPC has also established a “Diversity Committee.”  The committee was created to learn more 

about diversity issues at MORPC and how to improve diversity.  While not specifically designated to 

address federal Title VI compliance issues, this committee may have involvement in this in the 

future. Ultimately though, most of the on-going responsibility for meeting program-related Title VI 

requirements at MORPC rests with each department director.   

 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 10 

III. KEY MPO TITLE VI ACTIVITIES 

A. INTRODUCTION 

MORPC conducts various activities to address and respond to Title VI-related issues, concerns, and 

requirements, Section III focuses on the primary Transportation Systems and Funding/MPO and 

related departments activities regarding Title VI and includes planning sub-sections on data 

collection.  

B. PLANNING PROCESS 

1. INTRODUCTION 

The MORPC Transportation Systems and Funding Department carries out a comprehensive, 

cooperative and continuing planning process in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, 

Title 23, Section 450.  The principal products of this process are the Metropolitan Transportation 

Plan and the Transportation Improvement Program.  MORPC must continually monitor the impacts of 

its planning to avoid, minimize or mitigate disproportional impacts on Title VI-protected populations. 

Title VI affects the MORPC planning process in important ways.  These are described in more detail in 

subsections 2, and 3:   

 Data collection 

 Public involvement 

The primary responsibility for ensuring that these tasks are appropriately and sensitively carried-out 

lies with the Transportation Systems and Funding Director, while the specific tasks are normally sub-

delegated within the Transportation Systems and Funding Department.  The MORPC Director of 

Public and Government Affairs also has a significant role in the public involvement and notification 

responsibilities. 

The MORPC Transportation Systems and Funding Department also has often performed special 

activities or planning studies that are specifically directed to the Title VI-protected populations.  

Examples include the MPO’s frequent past involvement with (and ongoing interest in) developing and 

maintaining the  

 human services transportation planning, mobility, job access for the transportation-

disadvantaged, related to the Coordinated Plan.  

 Transportation Demand Management Plan incorporates mobility management. 

 Planning Framework for the Evacuation of the Transportation Needs Populations in Central 

Ohio. 

 insight2050 to proactively plan for development and growth over the next 30+ years.  This 

report considers changing demographics and impacts to the mobility of the transportation 

system. 

 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 11 

 Minority Mobility Needs: During our outreach and analysis we did not identify any 

transportation needs specific to minority populations. Their needs were similar to the needs 

of the general population; access to jobs and other services and generally have adequate 

mobility throughout the region.  Our planning process continuously reaches out to minority 

populations. To date we have not identified that minority populations in our region have 

transportation needs different from the population as a whole. These are: access to jobs and 

other services; improve the safety of the transportation system; minimize congestion; and 

increasingly over the last several years access to more options including improved transit 

services and providing more biking and walking infrastructure to create better and more 

sustainable neighborhoods. Our transportation planning process includes minority population 

groups and viewpoints. 

 

 Impacts of State and Federal funds: MORPC’s analysis of the impact of the distribution of 

State and Federal funds is shown in figures IV-1 to IV-32 on pages 20- 34 of the 

Environmental Justice documentation. The charts identify the impacts of the TIP projects with 

respect to particular measures on various populations groups which specially include 

minority and non minority populations groups.  A disparate impact would show up in these 

graphs if the trends depicted on the graph would be different between minority and non 

minority population. In all measures the trend lines of minority and non minority population 

follow a similar pattern as a result of the TIP projects when compared to the no build 

situation.  More details can be derived by the paragraph associated with each measure.  See 

Appendix H. 

 

This type of work is done periodically in addition to the standard MPO activities discussed 

below. 

2. DATA COLLECTION 

MORPC is a major collector, user and generator of economic, demographic, land use, transportation, 

and other data.  Collecting some data is a regulatory requirement:  Develop procedures for the 

collection of statistical data (race, color, sex, age, disability, and national origin) of participants in, 

and beneficiaries of State highway programs, i.e., relocates, impacted citizens and affected 

communities (23 CFR 200.9(b)(4)).  Some of the purposes identified for collecting data, include: 

To Identify: 

 Impacts and persons/businesses impacted 

 Transportation needs of all persons/groups within plans or project area 

 People to include in the decision-making process 

 Leaders/”Champion(s)” for various modes and transportation options 

 Benchmark and monitor MORPC diversity efforts 

Historically, the major need for data at MORPC has been related to the travel demand modeling 

component of the transportation work program and is a core part of MORPC’s ongoing work.  The 

need for data, however, goes beyond modeling and permeates most planning and service outreach 

activities at MORPC. 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 12 

The MPO provides forecasts of population, housing, economic and transportation trends that provide 

the basis for addressing current issues and exploring future needs.  MORPC also serves as a center 

for the collection, analysis, and dissemination of information in Central Ohio. 

Some data is important to the planning process and Title VI because it helps identify the geographic 

locations and extent of traditionally-underserved populations that are protected through Title VI.   

Demographic data regarding characteristics of these target populations for the metropolitan 

planning area is gathered and distributed into MORPC’s traffic analysis zones.  This is done so that 

the data can be further analyzed through the travel demand model.  The analyses result in the 

identification of planning measurements that can be used to identify geographic areas of high 

densities of target populations.  

3. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

An effective public involvement process is a cornerstone to due process protection under the law.  

The rationale is the desire for a public involvement process that proactively seeks and is open to 

addressing the needs of all persons, including those traditionally-underserved.  Furthermore, the 

rationale is to provide public access and the opportunity for input in the development of agency 

programming. 

The public participation, consultation and notification requirements of MPOs are described in the 

Code of Federal Regulations Title 23, Section 450.316. CFR 450.316 (1) (vii):  Seeking out and 

considering the needs of those traditionally underserved by existing transportation systems, such as 

low-income and minority households, who may face challenges accessing employment and other 

services. 

Public involvement is defined as the process by which interested and affected individuals or entities 

are consulted and included in decision-making process.  The public involvement process includes: 

 Information dissemination (timely and relevant) 

 Consultation (honest and open exchanges) 

 “Stakeholder” participation (collaborative engagement) 

Communication and public outreach are important to most MORPC programs and activities.  

Planning studies conducted by staff often need to include participation by a broad spectrum of area 

residents.  Services offered by the housing or weatherization programs particularly, must reach lower 

and moderate-income groups, minorities, non-English speaking persons, and others.  Results of the 

public participation efforts are included in the Public Involvement Appendix of each document.  The 

Diversity and Inclusion plan also benchmarks the effectiveness of reaching out to these populations.  

See Focus Area: Service to Diverse Populations in the Diversity and Inclusion Plan. See Appendix N. 

The MORPC public participation plan, which is updated periodically, helps to guide the engagement 

and outreach efforts for the transportation planning process.  The current version of this plan is in 

Appendix G.   

Some of the tools that MORPC uses to help keep the public informed include the following: 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 13 

 Website – MORPC maintains an extensive website which is updated frequently.  The site includes 

information on the agency’s responsibilities, policies, programs, publications, on-going activities, 

and press releases.  Direct staff links are provided for most of the information on the website. 

 Social Media – MORPC’s social media efforts include Facebook, Twitter, Vimeo, LinkedIn and 

Instagram. 

 Publications – Each year, MORPC issues a multitude of publications, reports, and maps as part 

of the agency work, and responds to and processes a large number of data requests.  Much of 

this can be accessed through the website. The publications are also distributed to the 

metropolitan libraries located within the transportation planning area.   

 Press Releases – Press releases are routinely sent to more than 150 media contacts, including 

daily and weekly newspapers, and television and radio stations throughout the Central Ohio area.  

These include numerous Title VI-protected groups.  The press releases are also placed on the 

website in the Press Center. 

 Meetings Open to the Public – All MORPC board and committee meetings are open to the public.  

Meeting dates, times and agendas for board and major committee meetings are posted well in-

advance on the agency’s website. 

 Opportunities for Public Comment – MORPC routinely provides opportunities for public comment 

through email, U.S. mail, fax, phone, and through public comment at meetings.  MORPC 

responds to all comments received. 

 Staff is Accessible – Staff is accessible in person, on the phone, by mail, by fax, and by email.  

Contact information for many staff members is included on the agency website. 

 Mailings – MORPC routinely uses direct mail and email to keep the public informed of the 

agency’s services, programs, public comment periods, meetings, and publications. These 

mailings include a large number of community groups, some of which represent Title VI protected 

groups.  MORPC also sends press releases to newspapers that are published by and for 

traditionally underserved populations. 

 Events – Events such as workshops, open houses, and forums are held regularly, as needed.  

MORPC routinely offers the following different ways for people to comment on activities, 

programs, and decisions made at the agency, as follows: 

 Comments are Accepted at Any Time – Comments are accepted by phone, fax, email, U.S. mail, 

from the interactive maps on the website and in person at any board, committee or public 

meeting.   

 Formal Public Comment Periods for Major Activities – Formal public comment and review periods 

are used to solicit comments on major planning and programming activities.  This includes major 

amendments to the transportation plan or transportation improvement program and changes to 

important MORPC policies such as the public participation plan. 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 14 

“Diversity and cultural competence are part of the DNA 

of our agency.” William Murdock, MORPC Executive  

Director  

MORPC also has an active Community Advisory Committee that is a major component of the public 

involvement process and provides public input and recommendations to the Transportation Policy 

Committee.  It is the responsibility of Public and Government Affairs  to make sure that the 

Community Advisory Committee has representation from Title VI-relevant populations. 

The Community Advisory Committee presently has 19 members, including 3 minority, and 1 person 

with a disability. MORPC consistently recruits for new committee members. MORPC also reviews and 

requires that project-specific committees include representation of diverse populations from the 

study areas.  

The Transportation Advisory Committee serves as the technical component of the public 

involvement process and provides recommendations to the Transportation Policy Committee.  The 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) presently has 23 members.  A survey is currently being 

conducted for the members to self-identify their racial, ethnic or national origin status. Once the 

survey is completed, the Title VI program will be updated with the information.  Membership will 

include the opportunity for proposed members to self identify. MORPC is in the process of updating 

the TAC By-laws and the 2015 Diversity and Inclusion Plan.  Updated TAC By-laws and Diversity and 

Inclusion Plan will encourage minority 

participation on MORPC committees. 

In recent years, MORPC has taken steps to 

reach out to the growing non-English speaking communities in Central Ohio.  MORPC has some of its 

information translated into Spanish and it also routinely distributes information to Spanish and 

Somali publications in the region.  The MORPC website is translatable into various languages. 

MORPC also has under contract various agencies that provide interpretation, translation and 

services for the hearing impaired.  This information is available to all staff on the intranet site and at 

the front desk in the lobby.  See additional information in the Diversity and Inclusion plan under 

Focus Area: Service to Diverse Populations.  See Appendix N. 

 Additional information on public involvement is included on the MORPC website.  See the MORPC 

“public involvement” and “Metropolitan Transportation Plan” links in Appendix A. 

C. DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION PLAN 

In 2009 MORPC formed the Diversity & Inclusion Committee to investigate the agency’s approach to 

diversity.  The committee inventoried each department’s policies in serving diverse populations. The 

committee also hired a consultant, Multiethnic Advocates for Cultural Competence (MACC), to help 

MORPC enhance its diversity efforts.  

In 2013, MORPC created the first MORPC Diversity & Inclusion Work Plan. The plan utilized the 

suggestions from MACC based on surveys and focus group interviews with staff and board members, 

as well as information provided from a MORPC self-assessment for cultural competence in the 

workplace completed for United Way.   

The goal of the yearly work plans is to cultivate a work environment that is welcoming and inclusive; 

provide services and programs to the Central Ohio community creating a special place to live, work, 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 15 

and raise a family; and create a place for businesses to want to locate. The work plans assist MORPC 

in its planning and decision-making, establishing priorities, providing relevancy to the MORPC region, 

building capacity, maintaining accountability, allocating resources and improving services to the 

Central Ohio community.    

MORPC’s commitment to diversity is evident in its Diversity Statement: 

“Diversity refers to the differences that make us unique.  MORPC recognizes, values, embraces and celebrates 

diversity by respecting and utilizing all of our differences to enhance our lives and our society.” 

The 2015 Diversity Work Plan intends to enhance and improve upon the six focus areas identified in 

the 2013 and 2014 plans.  Each focus area includes demographics or references to relevant data as 

well as any MACC or United Way Assessment recommendations appropriate for that area.   

The matrices, sorted by focus area, identifies: the process in which to achieve desired outcomes 

(Infrastructure); the capability to implement the processes (Competency); and the MORPC Team 

Member(s) responsible for the specific infrastructure (Staff). The matrix provides an area for 

reporting results (Outcome). A Glossary of Terms is included at the end for acronyms used 

throughout this document.   

The 2015 Work Plan will continue to measure the six focus areas identified in the 2014 plan with 

changes to the goals in some areas. 

 Workforce (WF) – Commit to the preparation of a culturally competent workforce.     

 Workplace (WP) – Improve accessibility and accommodations for minorities, people with 

disabilities and GBLT. 

 Diversity Spend (DS) – Increase diverse vendors spend to 10 percent. 

 Service to Diverse Populations (SD) – Increase/enhance service to diverse populations. 

 Diversity Requirements (DR) – Continue to meet the federal requirements for DBE and 

Section 3 HUD monitoring and reporting.  

 Diversity Communications (DC) – Increase the promotion of MORPC’s services and programs 

to diverse audiences, and increase the awareness of MORPC’s Diversity & Inclusion efforts. 

See Appendix N. for the complete Diversity and Inclusion Plan. 

 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page 16 

IV. OTHER TITLE VI-RELATED RESPONSIBILITIES AT MORPC 

A. TITLE VI RESOLUTION, POLICY STATEMENT AND ASSURANCES 

MORPC is required by the U.S. Department of Transportation to submit approval of the three-year 

Title VI program and to maintain a Title VI policy statement signed by the Executive Director and Title 

VI assurances.  See Appendix J. The policy statement, included in Appendix C, is an express 

commitment to non-discrimination and is signed by the chief administrative officer.  The policy 

statement is required to be circulated throughout the organization and general public. 

The Title VI assurances are now included as part of the annual MPO self-certification resolution, 

usually adopted in May of each year. Appendix C includes a copy of this from FY 2016. 

It is relevant to note that by signing an assurance, the recipient has provided documentation that 

may be a basis for a ‘breach of contract’ action.  Even without such writing, courts describe Title VI 

obligations (and other non-discrimination laws) as similar to a contract; "’the recipients' acceptance 

of the funds triggers coverage under the non-discrimination provision" (Paralyzed Veterans, 477 U.S. 

at 605). 

Assurances serve two important purposes: they remind prospective recipients of their non-

discrimination obligations, and they provide a basis for the federal government to sue to enforce 

compliance with these statutes. 

The notice, Notifying the Public of Rights Under Title VI, can be found on MORPC’s website at 

www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi,in MORPC’s lobby and in the employee lounge.  

B. ON-SITE TITLE VI FEDERAL OR STATE REVIEWS 

The federal agency providing the financial assistance is primarily responsible for enforcing Title VI as 

it applies to its recipients.  Federal agencies have several mechanisms available to evaluate whether 

recipients are in compliance with Title VI, and additional means to enforce or obtain compliance 

should a recipient's practices be found lacking.  Evaluation mechanisms include pre-award reviews, 

post-award compliance reviews, and investigations of complaints.  

MORPC is subject to on-site federal or state Title VI compliance reviews, though this would be a rare-

occurrence, if it took place.  On-site reviews, which would be a detailed review of how MORPC 

addresses Title VI compliance, can be done anytime that a federal agency director believes that such 

a review is warranted, or for other specific reasons.  Due to the dispersion within the MPO and the 

agency of Title VI activities and responsibilities, any response to on-site reviews by the agency is 

likely to be a joint effort by various individuals and departments.   

Much more common, are special Title VI reviews pertaining to one project (see next section), activity 

or to complaints, usually requiring a written response.  Title VI issues are also usually reviewed as 

part of the MPO on-site certification review conducted by FHWA and FTA every four years.  A copy of 

the 2014 Title VI and Non-discrimination questions and answers to the Certification Review are 

included in Appendix M. MORPC strives to comply to proper procedures and maintenance of 

documentation of all activities related to Title VI. 

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi


MORPC Title VI Program Page 17 

 

C. SPECIAL GRANTS 

It is not unusual for MORPC to apply for special grants from various federal agencies or for federal 

grants through state agencies.  These grants may be initiated by the MPO or another department at 

MORPC and may be a joint effort across departments.  Often, in these cases, the federal agency (or 

state agency representing the federal agency) will require their own Title VI assessment – primarily 

answering various questions (and perhaps providing documentation) regarding Title VI at MORPC.  

This assessment is in accordance with U.S. Justice Department - recommended procedures for 

federal agencies. 

Completing the required forms and documentation may be a combined effort at MORPC.  As noted in 

the previous section, MORPC having correctly followed and documented Title VI procedures in the 

past can make responding to these Title VI reviews less difficult.  The current document also should 

help with this. 

Federal agencies typically require that an applicant submit an assurance of compliance with Title VI 

(and other applicable non-discrimination related laws) as part of a pre- grant award review.  They 

may request information on pending lawsuits or complaints, prior compliance determinations, ethnic 

makeup of staff and decision-making bodies, and other related information.  As part of the federal 

agency internal screening process, agency civil rights officials are normally notified of potential 

assistance grants and are provided the opportunity to raise a "red flag" or concern about potential 

grant recipients, such as MORPC. 

D. COMPLAINT PROCESS 

Any individual may exercise their right to file a complaint with MORPC, or oversight federal or state 

agencies, if that person believes that they have been subject to unequal treatment or discrimination,  

in their receipt of benefits/services on grounds of race, color, or  national origin.  MORPC adopted an 

external Title VI complaint process in 2004.   

Under MORPC’s Requirement to Record and Report Transit-Related Investigations, Complaints, and 

Lawsuits, MORPC has not, in the past three years, received a Title VI complaint, investigation or 

lawsuit.   

MORPC makes a concerted effort to resolve complaints informally at the lowest level, using the 

agency’s non-discrimination complaint process or other procedures.  The complaint process is 

intended to be used for external discrimination complaints.  It includes a multi-step process for 

resolving complaints in conjunction with the Ohio Department of Transportation and federal 

agencies.  

MORPC is also required to make it known that discrimination-related complaints can be submitted to 

MORPC using this procedure or through the federal highway or transit administrations, or other 

federal agencies.   



MORPC Title VI Program Page 18 

Per the complaint process, complaints would first be submitted to the Director of Human Resources 

and Administrative Services, who is the Title VI liaison for MORPC.  This person will review the 

complaint then request assistance in the response from the appropriate department director.  The 

current complaint process is in Appendix E and on the MORPC website. 

 

E. NOTIFYING BENEFICIARIES OF PROTECTION UNDER TITLE VI 

In order to comply with 49 CFR Section 21.9(d) and the FTA Civil Rights Assurance (that MORPC has 

signed) and other requirements, recipients and subrecipients shall provide information to the public 

regarding their Title VI obligations and apprise members of the public of the protections against 

discrimination afforded them by Title VI.   The information shall include: 

 A statement that the agency operates programs without regard to race, color, and national 

origin. 

 A description of the procedures that members of the public should follow in order to request 

additional information on the recipient’s or sub-recipient’s non-discrimination obligations. 

 A description of the procedures that members of the public should follow in order to file a 

discrimination complaint against the recipient or subrecipient. 

Notices of Title VI obligations and protections against discrimination are located on MORPC’s 

website www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi, in MORPC’s main lobby and in the 

employee lunchroom.  The notices are written in English and Spanish.  Information regarding the 

notices is also available in the Diversity and Inclusion Plan under Area of Focus: Workplace.   

The FTA Title VI Assurance says: 

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission will make it known to the public that the person or 

persons alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin as it relates to the 

provision of transportation services and transit-related benefits may file a complaint with the Federal 

Transit Administration and/or the U.S. Department of Transportation. 

MORPC does this in the following ways: 

 Website – MORPC maintains a website with a wide-range of information on discrimination-

related concerns.  It also includes MORPC’s complaint process.  

 Major Publications – In major publications, such as the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and 

Transportation Improvement Program, information is included in the front on MORPC’s 

obligations related to Title VI and where to get more information. 

 Brochures – the non-discrimination clause is also placed on MORPC pamphlets and 

brochures.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/policies/title-vi/


MORPC Title VI Program Page 19 

F. LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) AND OTHER COMMUNICATION ISSUES 

A limited English proficiency or LEP person is one who does not speak English as primary language 

and has limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English.  MORPC is required to implement 

sound measures and take reasonable steps for meaningful access to programs and activities by 

LEPs.   

Requirement to Provide Meaningful Access to LEP Persons: Language Assistance Plan or LEP Plan is 

located in Appendix I. 

Additional information on the LEP population is available in the Diversity and Inclusion Plan under 

Area Focus: Service to Divers Populations and the ODOT Title VI Assessment.  See Appendix D. 

Illiteracy is another situation that can make communication, especially written communication, 

difficult.  MORPC staff is available to help client’s complete applications for service and other 

documents and to take verbal comments.  Public meetings are also frequently held which allow for 

communication verbally with staff and in written form. 

G. ANNUAL TITLE VI REPORT FOR ODOT 

Annually, in May, in conjunction with developing the coming year’s planning work program, MORPC 

updates the Title VI report required by the Ohio Department of Transportation.  The MPO is mostly a 

subrecipient of federal transportation funds and ODOT is usually the primary recipient for MORPC.   

The ODOT report, which helps to satisfy federal requirements for the primary recipient and the sub-

recipient, is submitted to ODOT with the transportation work program and currently includes 

information related to:  the composition of the MPO staff; Title VI complaints; use of minority 

contractors; and citizen participation activities.  A copy of the most recent report is included in 

Appendix D and on the MORPC website.  

H. CONTRACT PROCEDURES 

Contract Procedures 

MORPC’s contracting and pre-contracting steps are generally done on a decentralized basis by 

individual departments, though all contracts are reviewed by the MORPC Chief of Staff & Finance 

Director.  MORPC’s current contracting procedures, as adopted by the Commission, are contained in 

the document listed in the first bullet item, above.  These are general requirements that apply 

agency-wide. 

The requirement is to include specific Title VI-related text in all MORPC requests for proposals (RFPs), 

requests for qualifications (RFQs) and contracts.  MORPC is required to include the following 

language in all RFPs or RFQs: 

[The following section is for projects funded by federal transportation funds.] 

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d to 2000d-4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 20 

Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in 

Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such Act, 

hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in any contract entered into pursuant to 

this advertisement, minority business enterprise will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in 

response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, creed, 

religion, ancestry, national origin, sex or gender, sexual orientation, disability or other handicap, age, 

marital/familial status, income, or status with regard to public assistance in consideration for an 

award.  

  The following text is required to be included in all contracts: 

The background of this Agreement is as follows: 

A. Pursuant to the SAFETEA-LU Act of 2005 and the MAP-21 Act of 2012, the Federal Highway 

Administration (“FHWA”) made certain funds available to the State of Ohio for surface 

transportation planning programs. MORPC is the sub-recipient of some of these funds 

(“GRANT”). 

 

B. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (hereinafter referred to as the 

“SUBRECIPIENT”) HEREBY AGREES THAT as a condition to receiving any Federal financial 

assistance from the Department of Transportation it will comply with Title VI of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred 

to as the Act), and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal 

Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, 

nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation- 

Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the 

Regulations) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in accordance with the Act, 

Regulations, and other pertinent directives, no persons the United States shall, on the 

grounds of race, color, creed, national origin, sex or gender, sexual orientation, disability, 

age, or income, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the SUBRECIPIENT 

receives Federal financial assistance from the Department of Transportation including the 

Ohio Department of Transportation, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will promptly 

take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by 

subsection 21.71(a) of the regulations. 

§19. Non-Discrimination.   

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex or gender, 

sexual orientation, disability, age, or income in the performance of this contract.  CONSULTANT shall 

carry out the applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-

assisted contracts.  Failure by CONSULTANT to carry out these requirements is a material breach of 

this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as MORPC 

deems appropriate. 

To effectuate Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the following notice to the CONSULTANT’S 

compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 for federal aid recipients applies.  MORPC has 

made similar notice of compliance via the GRANT agreement. During the performance of this 

Agreement, CONSULTANT for itself, its assignees and successors in interest agrees as follows: 

a) Compliance with Regulations: CONSULTANT will comply with the regulations relative to 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 21 

nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. DOT Title 49, Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as 

“Regulations”), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 

Agreement. 

b) Nondiscrimination: CONSULTANT, with regard to the work performed by it after the execution 

of this Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, 

ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, disability or other handicap, age, 

marital/familial status, or status with regard to public assistance in the selection and 

retention of contractors and consultants, including in the procurement of materials and 

leases of equipment.  The CONSULTANT will not participate either directly or indirectly in the 

discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices 

when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

c) Solicitations for Contracts, including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all 

solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONSULTANT for work to 

be performed under a contract, including procurement of materials or equipment, each 

potential contractor or supplier will be notified by  CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT’s 

obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the 

grounds of race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, 

disability or other handicap, age, marital/familial status, veteran status or status with regard 

to public assistance. 

d) Information and Reports: CONSULTANT will provide all information and reports required by 

the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, 

records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by 

ODOT, FHWA, or FTA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or 

directives.  Where any information required of CONSULTANT is in the exclusive possession of 

another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT will so certify to 

ODOT, FHWA or FTA as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the 

information. 

e) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONSULTANT’s noncompliance with the 

nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, ODOT will impose such Agreement sanctions 

as ODOT, FHWA, or FTA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 

i. Withholding of payments to CONSULTANT under this Agreement until CONSULTANT 

complies, and/or; 

ii. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of this Agreement, in whole or in part. 

f) Incorporation of Provisions: CONSULTANT will include the provisions of the five immediately 

preceding paragraphs in every contract, including procurement of materials and leases of 

equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.   

CONSULTANT will take such action with respect to any contracts or procurement as ODOT, 

FHWA, or FTA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 

noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or 

is threatened with, litigation with a contractor, consultant, or supplier as a result of such 

direction, MORPC may request ODOT to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 

ODOT, and, in addition, MORPC may request the United States to enter into such litigation to 

protect the interest of the United States. 



MORPC Title VI Program Page 22 

MPO contracts also need to include the “Contractor Contractual Requirements.”  This is included as 

part of the “Standard DOT Assurances” document, currently included as part of MORPC’s annual 

self-certification resolution.  A copy of this is in Appendix C. 

  



MORPC Title VI Program Page 23 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A Civil Rights and Non-Discrimination Related Links 

Appendix B Non-Discrimination Clause in MORPC ODOT Agreement 

Appendix C Title Assurances, Self-Certification of Process, Contractors’ Requirements 

Appendix D ODOT Tible VI Baseline Assessment Tool – Updated Version – FY2016 

Appendix E Non-Discrimintation Complaint Procedure 

Appendix F Responsibilities for Title VI Compliance at MORPC 

Appendix G Public Participation Plan 

Appendix H Environmental Justice Analysis TIP 

Appendix I MORPC LEPP 

Appendix J Proposed Resolution 19-15 – Adoption of 2015 Title VI Plan 

Appendix K 2015 Final MOORPC 5310 PMP 

Appendix L Title VI Notice 

Appendix M 2014 MORPC FHWA FTA Certification Questions with Answers 

Appendix N Diversity and Inclusion Plan 

 

 



Links to Other Title VI/Non-Discrimination Program Appendices 

 

Appendix A – Civil Rights and Non-Discrimination Related Links: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20A%20Civil%20Rights%20and%20Non%20Dis%2

0related%20links.pdf  

 

Appendix B – Non-Discrimination Clause in MORPC ODOT Agreement: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20B%20Non%20Discrimination%20Clause%20in%

20MORPC%20ODOT%20Agreement.pdf  

 

Appendix C – Title Assurances, Self-Certification of Process, Contractors’ Requirements: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015AssuranceDocuments.pdf  

 

Appendix D – ODOT Title VI Baseline Assessment Tool – Updated Version – FY2016: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20D%20ODOT%20Title%20VI%20Baseline%20Asse

ssment%20Tool_Updated%20Version_FY2016.pdf  

 

Appendix E – Non-Discrimination Complaint Procedure: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20E%20Non%20Discrimination%20Complaint%20P

rocedure.pdf  

 

Appendix F – Responsibilities for Title VI Compliance at MORPC: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20F%20Responsibilities%20for%20Title%20VI%20

Compliance%20at%20MORPC.pdf  

 

Appendix G – Public Participation Plan: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/110415%202015%20Transportation%20Public%20Involveme

nt%20Plan.pdf  

 

Appendix H – Environmental Justice Analysis TIP: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20H%20Environmental%20Justice%20Analysis%20

TIP.pdf  

 

Appendix I – Attachments to Appendix I: www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20I%20-

%20Attachments%20to%20Appendix%20I.pdf  

 

Appendix K – 2015 Final MORPC 5310 PMP: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20K%202015%20Final%20MORPC%205310%20P

MP.pdf  

 

Appendix L – Title VI Notice: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20L%20Title%20VI%20Notice.pdf  

 

Appendix M – 2014 MORPC FHWA FTA Certification Questions with Answers: 

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20M%202014%20MORPC%20FHWA%20FTA%20C

ertification%20Questions%20with%20Answers.pdf  

 

Appendix N – Diversity and Inclusion Plan:  

www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/DiverssityWorkPlan2015-FINAL.pdf  

 

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20A%20Civil%20Rights%20and%20Non%20Dis%20related%20links.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20A%20Civil%20Rights%20and%20Non%20Dis%20related%20links.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20B%20Non%20Discrimination%20Clause%20in%20MORPC%20ODOT%20Agreement.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20B%20Non%20Discrimination%20Clause%20in%20MORPC%20ODOT%20Agreement.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2015AssuranceDocuments.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20D%20ODOT%20Title%20VI%20Baseline%20Assessment%20Tool_Updated%20Version_FY2016.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20D%20ODOT%20Title%20VI%20Baseline%20Assessment%20Tool_Updated%20Version_FY2016.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20E%20Non%20Discrimination%20Complaint%20Procedure.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20E%20Non%20Discrimination%20Complaint%20Procedure.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20F%20Responsibilities%20for%20Title%20VI%20Compliance%20at%20MORPC.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20F%20Responsibilities%20for%20Title%20VI%20Compliance%20at%20MORPC.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/110415%202015%20Transportation%20Public%20Involvement%20Plan.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/110415%202015%20Transportation%20Public%20Involvement%20Plan.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20H%20Environmental%20Justice%20Analysis%20TIP.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20H%20Environmental%20Justice%20Analysis%20TIP.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20I%20-%20Attachments%20to%20Appendix%20I.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20I%20-%20Attachments%20to%20Appendix%20I.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20K%202015%20Final%20MORPC%205310%20PMP.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20K%202015%20Final%20MORPC%205310%20PMP.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20L%20Title%20VI%20Notice.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20M%202014%20MORPC%20FHWA%20FTA%20Certification%20Questions%20with%20Answers.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/Appendix%20M%202014%20MORPC%20FHWA%20FTA%20Certification%20Questions%20with%20Answers.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/DiverssityWorkPlan2015-FINAL.pdf


 
LIMITED 
ENGLISH 
PROFICIENCY 
PLAN 

  DECEMBER 1, 2015 

ssaunders
Typewritten Text
Appendix I



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission ................................................. 1 

Limited English Proficiency ......................................................................... 2 

Four Factor Analysis ..................................................................................... 3 

 LEP Persons Encountered by the Services ................................... 3 

 Frequency of Contact with MORPC Services ................................ 5 

 Nature and Importance of the Service .......................................... 5 

 Resources for LEP Outreach ........................................................... 6 

 Historical and Current Efforts ......................................................... 6 

 Identification of LED Population .................................................... 7 

 Language Assistance Measures ................................................... 11 

 Providing Notice to LEP Persons .................................................. 12 

 Employee LEP Training .................................................................. 12 

 Expansion of Outreach Efforts ...................................................... 13 

 Evaluation and Update ................................................................... 13 

 

Attachments 

 Summary of Diverse Populations 

o Diversity & Inclusion Summary 

o 2013 LEPP Summary 

 Document Translation 

o Translation Costs 

o Language Line Translation Estimate 

 Interpretation Services Process 

o Translation Interpretation Services 

 LEP Outreach 

o Air Quality Brochure - Spanish 

o Full Add - Hispanic 

o Full Ad - Somali 

o Web Banner - Somali 

o RideSolutions in Spanish and Somali 

o Weatherization Flyer in Spanish 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

1 

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is a voluntary association of local governments 

in Central Ohio. Franklin County and nearby counties as well as their cities, villages and townships are 

eligible for membership. Elected and appointed officials sit on the Commission, which is the policy-

making body of the organization.  

 

As a regional planning commission, MORPC has the flexibility and capability to be responsive to its 

members' needs. MORPC assists with planning and implementing programs in areas of energy 

conservation, infrastructure, transportation, land use, economic prosperity, environmental protection 

and others.  

 

MORPC serves as a forum for state and local governments on regional issues and helps represent 

local communities' interests and needs at the state and federal levels. MORPC recognizes and 

encourages public and private collaboration on a regional basis and works to build consensus, sound 

planning practices and realistic decision making for the future. Because of MORPC’s role in the 

region, MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee was originally designated the Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (MPO) for the Columbus urbanized area in 1964 and re-designated in 1973.  

 

As the MPO, MORPC’s Transportation Policy Committee conducts the federally required 3C 

(continuous, cooperative and comprehensive) transportation planning process. This process results in 

plans and programs that consider all transportation modes and supports the goals of the 

metropolitan transportation plan. It is the basis for the development of the 20-year Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan and the 4-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The plans and 

programs lead to the development and operation of the region’s integrated, multimodal 

transportation system that facilitates the efficient and economic movement of people and goods. 

 

MORPC’s Data and Mapping services provides quick answers to specific questions or performs 

analysis that helps inform decision makers about transportation, housing, economics, environment, 

energy, or sustainability policies. MORPC serves as a clearinghouse for Census data; population, 

housing and job forecasts; traffic counts; historic aerial photography; and downloadable GIS data.  

 

MORPC provides support and expertise for local governments to align community needs proactively 

with regional energy use and development, including regional air quality forecasting and alerts; 

Residential Energy Efficiency Programs; policy and programs related to cleaner air, financing, energy 

reliability and infrastructure; and manufacturing, building, and housing energy assessments. 

 

MORPC provides services and planning to serve and enhance Central Ohio’s natural environment; and 

to improve quality of life, public health, and economic prosperity and growth through bicycle and 

pedestrian planning, complete streets policies and tools, local foods, transportation safety and 

greenways and water quality. 

 

MORPC provides a number of housing services to help stabilize and redevelop neighborhoods in 

communities around Central Ohio. Services vary by community and include home repairs. 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 



Limited English Proficiency  
 

Compliance with Title VI includes Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons. The Limited English Proficiency 

(LEP) portion of this plan addresses Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination 

based on race, color or national origin. In 1974, the U.S. Supreme Court affirmed that the failure to ensure a 

meaningful opportunity for national origin minorities with limited-English proficiency to participate in a 

federally funded program violates Title VI (Federal-Aid Recipient Programs & Activities) regulations. 

Additionally, requirements are outlined in Executive Order 13166: Improving Access to Service for Persons 

with Limited English Proficiency, signed on August 11, 2000. Its purpose is to ensure accessibility to 

programs and services to eligible persons who have limited proficiency in the English language. Furthermore, 

the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) published Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ 

Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient Persons in the December 14, 2005 Federal Register, Volume 

70; Number 239. The guidance explicitly identifies Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs) as 

organizations that must follow this guidance. The Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan must be consistent 

with the fundamental mission of the organization, though not unduly burdening the organization. 

 

Federal Transit Administration’s Circular FTA C 4702.1B, October 1, 2012, provides recipients of FTA’s 

financial assistance with guidance and instructions necessary to carry out U.S. DOT Title VI regulations (49 

CFR, part 21) and to integrate into their programs and activities considerations expressed in the 

Department’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) 

Persons (70 FR 74087, December 14, 2005). 

 

In March 2014, MORPC approved Resolution T-1-14: "REQUESTING APPOINTMENT OF THE TRANSPORTATION 

POLICY COMMITTEE AS THE DESIGNATED RECIPIENT FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION SECTION 5310 

FUNDS FOR THE COLUMBUS URBANIZED AREA". T-1-14 appointed the Transportation Policy Committee as the 

Designated Recipient for FTA’s §5310 (Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities) 

funds for the Columbus Urbanized Area with all of the responsibilities incumbent upon that appointment. 

 

Plan Summary  

 

MORPC has developed this Limited English Proficiency Plan to identify reasonable steps for providing 

language assistance to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) who wish to access MORPC services. As 

defined in Executive Order 13166, LEP persons are those who do not speak English as their primary 

language and who have limited ability to read, speak, write or understand English.  

 

This plan outlines how to identify a person who may need language assistance, the ways in which assistance 

may be provided, staff training that may be required, and how to notify LEP persons that assistance is 

available. In order to prepare this plan, MORPC undertook the U.S. DOT four-factor LEP analysis which 

considers the following factors:  

 

1. The number or proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to 

encounter a MORPC program, activity or service.  

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with MORPC programs, activities or services.  

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by MORPC to the LEP 

population.  

4. The resources available to MORPC and overall cost to provide LEP assistance.  

 

A summary of the results of MORPC’s four-factor analysis is in the following section.  

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

2 



 

3 

MORPC collaborates with the general public, local communities, transit agencies, county engineers and 

the Ohio Department of Transportation to conduct the federally required metropolitan planning process 

for the region and to identify transportation projects for funding. MORPC does not provide bus service, rail 

service or other transportation services to the public other than RideSolutions, a rideshare program. 

 

MORPC has additional programs that interact with or could interact with LEP persons: 

 Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program provides Federal 

funding to improve mobility for seniors and people with disabilities. This program distributes grant 

funds for capital expenses for vehicles and related equipment used to transport seniors and people 

with disabilities and activities related to mobility management. Funds may also be used for operating 

projects, travel training to instruct persons with disabilities on using fixed-route bus services, and 

capital projects to remove barriers at bus stops for persons with disabilities. 

 The Residential Energy Efficiency Program improves the comfort of homes and creates energy savings 

for income-eligible renters and homeowners in Franklin County. These free services are available 

year-round in Franklin County and include assessment of the home to identify energy improvements.   

 MORPC Housing Rehab Program helps low- and moderate-income homeowners maintain and improve 

their homes through several housing rehabilitation programs. With funding provided by multiple 

agencies, MORPC has programs available to help with exterior repairs, emergency repairs and whole 

home rehabilitation. Basic program eligibility requirements are based on total household income, 

ownership of the home, and area of residency.  

 MORPC’s RideSolutions program promotes sustainable transportation alternatives with the goal of 

reducing congestion in the region, saving commuters on their fuel costs and improving the 

environment.  

 MORPC’s Air Quality Awareness Program seeks to address our region’s air quality issues, and to 

inform and alert the public, local governments, businesses, organizations and individuals of the 

actions they can take to protect public health and reduce air pollution. 

 

MORPC identified the LEP populations within its MPO boundary, including Delaware and Franklin 

counties, Bloom and Violet townships in Fairfield County, New Albany, Pataskala and Etna Township in 

Licking County and Jerome Township in Union County. The total number of LEP persons according to the 

2013 Census American Community Survey is 59,107 or 4.48 percent. The three largest LEP groups in the 

MPO area are Spanish (21,147) or 35.8 percent, African (9,358) or 15.9 percent, and Chinese (5,369) or 

9.1 percent.  

 

FOUR FACTOR ANALYSIS 

LEP Persons Encountered by the Services 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

4 

 

35.8% 

3.2% 

0.7% 

0.8% 

0.6% 

0.7% 

0.0% 

0.2% 

0.0% 

0.3% 

2.9% 

0.4% 

0.4% 

1.1% 

0.0% 

0.5% 

1.3% 

1.6% 

0.5% 

1.3% 

1.1% 

9.1% 
2.5% 

3.0% 

1.6% 

0.0% 

0.8% 

1.0% 

2.6% 

3.5% 

1.1% 

0.3% 

0.0% 

0.1% 

0.1% 

4.4% 

0.0% 

15.9% 
0.2% 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 

Spanish 

French 

French Creole 

Italian 

Portuguese 

German 

Yiddish 

Other West Germanic 

Scandinavian 

Greek 

Russian 

Polish 

Serbo-Croatian 

Other Slavic 

Armenian 

Persian 

Gujarati 

Hindi 

Urdu 

Other Indic 

Other Indo European 

Chinese 

Japanese 

Korean 

Mon-Khmer, Cambodian 

Hhmong 

Thai 

Laotian 

Vietnamese 

Other Asian 

Tagalog 

Other Pacific Island 

Navajo 

Other Native North American 

Hungarian 

Arabic 

Hebrew 

African 

Other and Unspecified 

2013 Census American Community Survey 



5 

The resources available to the recipient for LEP outreach, as well as the costs associated with that 

outreach. 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

Nature and Importance of the Service   

 

The designation of MORPC in November 2014 as the recipient of FTA’s Section 5310 funds requires 

consideration of the regional LEP population when providing access to people with a disability and 

seniors. MORPC’s 5310 funds are distributed to subrecipients who provide service to people with 

disabilities and seniors. Air Quality Alerts, Section 5310, RideSolutions and MORPC Residential Energy 

and Housing Rehab programs provide services that benefit people with disabilities and seniors in all 

diverse populations.  

 

 

As the MPO, LEP persons may come into contact with MORPC through participation in the transportation 

planning process, the RideSolutions program and the Air Quality Awareness Program. MORPC’s public 

involvement processes are outlined in the Public Involvement Plan (PIP), which was last updated in 2015. 

The PIP outlines MORPC’s policies with regard to public involvement, public outreach and public 

comments. MORPC conducts public open houses and attends community meetings to receive input 

regarding the region’s prioritization list or for special projects, as they may occur. Public outreach is 

achieved through a three-tier process; Advisory Committees, Public Outreach/Information and Project-

Specific Public Involvement.   

 
The RideSolutions program reaches out to the public through MORPC’s website, telephone hotline, 

Facebook and Twitter social media, highway signs, employer programs, community festivals and fairs, 

summits and conferences, radio, television and newspaper advertising and interviews. Information on the 

program has been provided in Spanish, Somali and English.   

 

The Air Quality program reaches out to the public through MORPC’s website, telephone hotline, Facebook 

and Twitter social media, employer programs, community festivals and fairs, summits and conferences, 

radio, television and highway message signs. Information on Air Quality Alerts is provided in Spanish and 

English. The telephone hotline provides air quality alerts in both English and Spanish. 

 

The Residential Energy Efficiency Program and the Housing Rehab programs reach out to the public 

through direct mail, MORPC’s website, Facebook and Twitter, community festivals and fairs and 

television. The Residential Energy Efficiency Program has provided information in Spanish and English.   

 

Attached is a summary of diverse populations, compiled through our Diversity & Inclusion Plan, who have 

requested services from MORPC. While it does not include those necessarily considered LEP, it does 

provide some indication of the populations utilizing our services. MORPC provides interpreters and 

translators, as needed, for all programs.   

 

 

Frequency of Contact with MORPC Services  



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

6 

In April 2013 MORPC completed a Limited English Proficiency Summary that identified the three primary LEP 

populations and their locations in the MPO planning area. When seeking input on our transportation 

planning process, special projects, and communicating the availability of our services and programs, MORPC 

has utilized a variety of tools in reaching out to our LEP populations, which include the following: 

 A language translation tool on its website 

 Language Identification cards available in the front lobby for walk-ins   

 Process created to assist persons with limited English proficiency  

 Partner organizations within the Latino and Asian communities that assist MORPC in outreach to LEP 

individuals specifically and to the Latino community in general (Hispanic Coalition, Empleos & 

Employment, Columbus New Americans, US Together, Council on World Affairs) 

 Title VI notice to the public in English and Spanish located in MORPC’s Lobby and Lounge 

 Air Quality Hotline in Spanish 

 Air Quality brochure produced in Spanish and English 

 Weatherization flyers produced in Spanish 

 RideSolutions radio ads produced in Spanish 

 RideSolutions postcard produced in Somali and English 

 RideSolutions television ads produced in Somali  

 Table display at the Somali Mall, Latino Job Fairs, Columbus International Festival and Asian Festival 

 Advertisements placed in event programs 

 Intercept surveys conducted at a Hispanic grocery store/restaurant 

 

 

Historical and Current Efforts 

Resources for LEP Outreach 

There are several funding resources available to MORPC for LEP outreach. MORPC membership dues, 

through the Diversity and Inclusion Program, are currently budgeted for translation and interpretation 

services. Program transportation funds (Public Involvement, RideSolutions, Air Quality and Section 5310) are 

also eligible for translation and interpretation services.    
 

Translation of major transportation documents has been researched and found to be extremely costly, 

especially in Somali. A focus group was held with members where English is their second language (ESL) to 

determine if it would be beneficial to translate MORPC’s large technical transportation documents. The 

members of the focus group felt that it would not be beneficial, but a less expensive option, the translation 

of applications, brochures, newsletters, one-page fact sheets, and executive and popular summaries would 

be more appropriate. See attached. 
 

MORPC will continue to reach out to the LEP community and provide language translation and interpretation 

services when practical and in consideration of the funding available. When applicable, the translation of 

documents will begin after the final English version has been completed. Some documents, such as 

brochures, can be produced in multiple languages in the same document where size is not an issue.    

 

Based on the four-factor analysis, MORPC has developed its LEP Plan as outlined in the following section. 

 



7 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

The LEP population was mapped to show LEP individuals as a percent of total population by census tract as 

shown in the attached map. There are several concentrations of LEP populations located mostly in Franklin 

County. These areas include: between SR 161 and I-270, south of SR 161 along I-71, around the Columbus 

International Airport between Broad Street and 5th Avenue, The Ohio State University, along SR 33 south of 

SR 161 and along west I-270 and West Broad Street. Individually, Spanish-speaking LEP populations are 

located throughout Franklin County, African-speaking primarily on the East side of Franklin County and 

Chinese-speaking primarily on the Northwest side of Franklin County.  

Identification of LEP population 

 



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

8 

 



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

9 

 



LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

10 

 



11 

Language Assistance Measures 

MORPC prides itself on reaching out to the public by attending their community and neighborhood 

meetings to present information on the transportation planning process. Before attending a community 

meeting to present the long-range transportation plan or the transportation improvement program, 

MORPC will determine if an interpreter and translation of the information is needed. With special projects 

or to gain access to LEP neighborhoods, MORPC utilized representatives from the City of Columbus’s New 

Americans Initiative and utilized staffs who speak alternative languages when attending/hosting 

meetings in the region. To accommodate this population, staff has held meetings in the Somali Mall, 

Hispanic grocery store/restaurant, Hispanic churches, ESL schools and neighborhood centers. 

 

MORPC pays particular attention at open houses or public meetings to determine who may exhibit low 

literacy skills. In the past, MORPC has asked participants to notify us when an interpreter was needed. 

While we have not needed an interpreter at MORPC open houses or public meetings, our Residential 

Energy and RideSolutions programs have utilized this service. MORPC’s Air Quality Alert program’s hotline 

is provided in English and Spanish. 

 

MORPC has Language Identification cards available in its lobby for walk-ins. Interpreters can attend 

meetings to accommodate participants who don’t speak English or speak English “less than very well.” 

When an interpreter is needed, in person or on the telephone, staff will attempt to determine what 

language is required and then access language assistance services at MORPC’s Language line service. 

See attached written process. 

 

MORPC continues to make every effort to arrange for translation, sign language or other special 

assistance at meetings for individuals with special needs who request them before the meeting. To date, 

there have been no such requests.  

 

MORPC has in the past surveyed its employees to determine those who can fluently speak another 

language. We have from time to time utilized staff to record a hotline script in an alternative language. 

Due to changes in personnel, MORPC will conduct another survey to determine employees who are 

bilingual and include a request for this information in employee orientation. 

 

Along with the annual tracking of diverse populations in the Diversity & Inclusion Plan, MORPC will track 

and monitor the efforts to serve LEP populations by the following: 

 

 Frequency of encounters seeking interpreters or translation services 

 Nature and importance of activity to LEP persons 

 Agency documents translated into alternative languages 

 Distribution of translated outreach material (location, frequency, number) 

 

 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 



12 

Annually, MORPC employees go through a Diversity and Inclusion training to prepare and educate them 

on the region's changing population. MORPC also will provide training to include a process on how to 

serve people who speak English "less than very well." Many front-line employees are already familiar with 

a process on how to obtain interpretation services for that population. The training will be expanded to 

include other MORPC staff and all new hires. 

 

The following training on MORPC’s Title VI Policy and LEP responsibilities provided to MORPC’s staff will 

include:  

 

 Types of language services available.  

 Process to serve LEP individuals when they call in, walk in or attend a public meeting hosted by 

MORPC. 

 How to respond to written communications from LEP persons. 

 Documentation of language assistance requests.  

 The process to handle a potential Title VI/LEP complaint.  

 

 

Employee LEP Training 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

When staff schedules a meeting for which the target audience is expected to include LEP individuals, 

outreach material will be printed in the alternative language and a request will be made for an 

interpreter. Brochures, maps, applications and other publications will be made available in an alternative 

language when a specific LEP population is identified. Information will also be distributed to area libraries 

within the targeted areas in alternative languages.   

 

MORPC works closely with the City of Columbus neighborhood and civic organizations. We request that 

they inform us when translation or interpretation services are needed especially in targeted areas. 

 

MORPC will let LEP persons know that language services are available free of charge by the following: 

 

 Notice placed in outreach material 

 Providing notices in newspapers, radio and television stations whose audiences are LEP populations 

about the availability of language assistance services 

 Notice to contractors and subcontractors of their obligation to provide language assistance to LEP 

individuals who participate in their programs and services and/or to whom services are provided 

 

Providing Notice to LEP Persons 



  

MORPC will update the LEP Plan as required by U.S. DOT. At a minimum, the plan will be reviewed and 

updated when data from current and future U.S. Censuses are available, or when it is clear that higher 

concentrations of LEP individuals are present in the region.  

 

Updates will include the following:  

  

 The number of documented LEP person contacts encountered annually.  

 How the needs of LEP persons have been addressed.  

 Update of LEP population in the region.  

 Determination as to whether the need for translation services has changed.  

 Determine whether local language assistance programs have been effective and sufficient to 

meet the need.  

 Determine whether MORPC’s financial resources are sufficient to fund language assistance 

resources needed.  

 Determine whether complaints have been received concerning the agency’s failure to meet the 

needs of LEP individuals.  

 Develop criteria for deciding which materials will be translated. 

 Explore the feasibility of producing outreach material in languages other than English and 

Spanish. 

 

Questions regarding this plan should be submitted to Bernice Cage, Public Information and Diversity 

Officer, Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission, 111 Liberty Street, Suite 100, Columbus, OH, 43215, 

bcage@morpc.org, 614-233-4157. 

13 

Evaluation and Update 

LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PLAN 

 

Expansion of Outreach Efforts 

MORPC will expand its LEP outreach efforts to also include:  

 

 Posting a Title VI complaint form on MORPC’s website in Spanish.  

 Posting a Title VI notice to the public in Spanish on the website. 

 Producing outreach material (applications, GRH, TIP Popular Summary, TIP brochure, printed 

newsletters and one-page fact sheets) in Spanish. 

 MORPC will survey its employees to determine those who speak another language fluently. This 

request will be included in new employee orientations. 

 The outreach material produced in alternative languages will be distributed to metropolitan 

libraries located in the target areas identified in the map. See Page 8. 

 

mailto:bcage@morpc.org
ssaunders
Typewritten Text



1 
 

 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

November 2015 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

State of the Region 2016 

MORPC is now accepting nominations for the William H. Anderson Excellence in Public Service 

Award, Regional Leadership Award and the William C. Habig Collaborative Achievement Award. The 

awards will be presented at the State of the Region Luncheon on May 6, 2016. Nominations must be 

received by Friday, January 15, 2016.  

 

The William H. Anderson Excellence in Public Service Award was established in 1992 to recognize a 

current or past board member who exemplifies outstanding leadership, a vision for the community 

and the region, and commitment to MORPC. William H. Anderson, a longtime MORPC board member, 

was the epitome of a civic volunteer who is remembered for his zeal with which he championed 

MORPC'S mission and goals. The winner must be a past or present MORPC board member. 

 

The Regional Leadership Award recognizes individuals in MORPC’s 15-county region (Delaware, 

Fairfield, Fayette, Franklin, Hocking, Knox, Licking, Logan, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Perry, Pickaway, 

Ross and Union Counties) who make extraordinary efforts to ensure the future viability of Central 

Ohio and its communities. Award winners exemplify MORPC’s continued dedication to address issues 

that transcend community boundaries and stimulate visionary thinking. 

 

The William C. Habig Collaborative Achievement Award recognizes individuals or groups who have 

achieved an effective effort and/or innovative collaborative in the region.  The award was created, in 

2006, in honor of William C. Habig, who served as MORPC’s Executive Director for 34 years. The 

honoree(s) will have demonstrated success in developing a specific initiative or entity that addressed 

key challenges facing the region. 

 

Government Affairs 

MORPC, along with other members of the Columbus Region Coalition, sent a joint letter to Central 

Ohio’s Congressional delegation highlighting key issues important to the region in the Federal 

FY2016 Appropriations process and the Highway Bill Reauthorization. The letter supports several of 

MORPC’s public policy agenda goals.  

 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

Thirty draft strategies were presented to the CAC and TAC committees for review and  comment. 

Comments will be accepted through January 2016. Work continues on evaluating nearly 1,000 

candidate projects for potential inclusion in the plan. Cost estimates and revenue projections are 

being finalized. 

 

Presentations on the draft strategies and projects for the 2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/lkoprowski@morpc.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1IqHBFmYdKimo-yEM2ddDY3srH78Z4v-uBwORghRR7pU/viewform
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11.25.15%20highway%20and%20approps.pdf
file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/twalsh@morpc.org


2 
 

Plan and the Active Transportation Plan were held at the City of Bexley, Westland Area Commission, 

and the Village of Shawnee Hills. The schedule of community presentations on the MTP is available 

on the website, www.morpc.org/mtp2040. A one-page fact sheet on the draft strategies was 

developed and will be distributed to area libraries next month.  

 

Transit/Human Services 

Team Members met with a Transportation Coalition to discuss the difficulty people have in accessing 

medical care. This group is considering future partnerships to raise awareness, increase access and 

explore existing resources with patients and providers. 

 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) FFY 2015 Section 5307 and Section 5339 apportionment 

split for the Columbus UZA between COTA and DATABus was coordinated. Total funds are over $17.5 

million. 

 

Notice was provided to approximately 400 organizations/individuals announcing availability of over 

$1.8 million in Section 5310 funding to enhance the mobility of older adults and individuals with 

disabilities. Workshops will be held on December 9, 2015 and December 14, 2015. Deadline for the 

applications is January 27, 2016. 

 

Work updating MORPC’s Title VI Program to be in compliance with FTA requirements is complete. A 

resolution will be going to the Commission for its approval. 

 

As part of the DATABus Transit Development Plan and Funding Study, Team Members reviewed a 

draft DATABus survey to be conducted in December and a draft of DATABus’ In-Depth Interview 

Summary.  

 

DATABus 

Three Community Outreach meetings for the Transit Development Plan and funding study will be 

held on December 9, 2015. The purpose of these meetings is to gain an understanding of what 

services the Delaware County Community expects from DATABus. The 9:00 a.m. meeting is at 

SourcePoint, 800 Cheshire Road, Delaware. The 2:00 p.m. meeting is at the Liberty Township Hall, 

10104 Brewster Lane, Powell, and the 6:00 p.m. meeting location is to be determined. 

 

DATA Bus' TAC began working on a new project. As outpatient medical procedures become more 

common, doctors are reluctant to allow patients to use any form of public transportation. The activity 

will help answer the question of how we can develop a service to accommodate people who have no 

other form of transportation and may not have someone to be with them after a procedure. 

 

The Delaware County Mobility Management program is in the beginning stages to provide temporary 

ramp systems to Delaware County residents who have temporary mobility impairment as a result of 

an accident or surgery. Mobility Management will arrange and pay for the ramp system for up to 16 

weeks to qualified individuals. The new website for Delaware County's Mobility Management is in 

mid-development and promises to be a one-stop website for transportation options within the 

county. 

 

RideSolutions 

RideSolutions Team Members are working with employers and agencies associated with the new 

Groveport Rickenbacker Employee Access Transit (GREAT) bus/shuttle program to promote 

RideSolutions Guaranteed Ride Home program, and to help encourage individuals to use the 

bus/shuttle. Around 100 companies and agencies were contacted by RideSolutions Team Members, 

and support for the program is positive. 

 

http://www.morpc.org/mtp2040


3 
 

The Marketing Report for the first and second quarters of 2015 is complete. During this time, 

RideSolutions added 397 commuters to the Commuter Matching Database. Of those commuters 

added, at least 37% learned of RideSolutions' services through grassroots outreach efforts facilitated 

by MORPC Team Members. 

 

Work began on creating programming for a regional bikeshare roundtable to take place in 

conjunction with the Active Transportation Plan stakeholder roundtable in January. The regional 

bikeshare roundtable will be a forum for local communities to express their desires and concerns of 

adopting a regional bikeshare model. 

 

MORPC's pilot Park-and-Pedal program implementation was discussed with local partners. The 

program encourages commuters into downtown to park their cars before arriving into our congested 

downtown where parking is sparse. Instead, commuters are encouraged to park and bike their way 

into downtown to work. Working in conjunction with the City of Columbus, MORPC has identified 

parking lots owned by the city that are connected to bike-friendly roads or multi-use paths that lead 

safely into downtown. Lots will be branded with clear signage at their entrance and indicated on 

MORPC's digital bike map. More than ten lots are expected to be designated within a five-mile radius 

of downtown. 

 

Survey information regarding effectiveness of the downtown bike commuting program contracted 

with YAYBikes! was received. Fifty-two percent of surveyed participants had replaced an auto trip 

with a bicycle trip since participating in the training. 

 

RideSolutions Team Members met with downtown sustainable transportation partners to work on a 

joint goal for 2016 to educate downtown employees on all modes of alternative transportation in the 

upcoming year. 

 

COTA Team Members and RideSolutions Team Members are working to analyze whether vanpooling 

can be a viable solution for discontinued express routes. COTA is looking to be proactive when 

ending routes by offering viable solutions to commuters. 

 

Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) 

The SCIP/LTIP scoring session with the members of the Public Works Integrating Committee (PWIC) 

was November 20, 2015. Team Members reviewed and scored the Columbus - Hamilton Road 

Phase B application with committee members. The PWIC will hold a public meeting December 4, 

2015 to review and discuss the preliminary ranking of projects for Round 30 SCIP/LTIP funding. A 

final public meeting will be held December 11, 2015, and a final slate of projects will be 

recommended for Round 30 funding. 

 

Team Members are working with the PWIC to find a replacement for the alternate private sector 

representative on the committee. Mr. Lee Phelan recently resigned his position. The new member 

will be announced and appointed at the December 11, 2015 public meeting.  Team Members 

provided an orientation session for new PWIC member, Joe Martin, Brown Township Trustee. Mr. 

Martin was appointed by the Township Trustees Association to serve on the PWIC until May 2018. 

 

The District 3 PWIC is seeking nominations to fill a three-year term, through the end of 2018, on its 

Franklin County Natural Resources Assistance Council (NRAC). NRAC, an 11-member council, 

develops project selection guidelines and evaluates and selects projects to receive funding from the 

Clean Ohio Conservation Fund program. District 3, Franklin County, received $3.1 million in funding 

for open space acquisition and to protect riparian corridors or watersheds for 2016. 

 

Data and Mapping  



4 
 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Regional Data Advisory Committee 

MORPC submitted an application for the Capital Bill to create a “Regional Data Lab for the Columbus 

Region”. The application is primarily a request to build the website recommended by the Data Task 

Force and also to include funding for developing new economic development tools that might be 

included on the site. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

Data and Mapping Team Members will be presenting the 2040 MTP draft to Delaware City and 

Delaware County agencies in December.  We are drafting the land use and projection of the plan 

report. 

 

Team Members submitted the MTP Project web map for consideration as a presentation at the 2016 

GIS-T Conference. 

 

insight2050 Phase 2a 

Vitality and Activity indices are being calculated for the nodes, corridors, and neighborhoods already 

identified. Team Members are surveying developers, realtors and communities to determine what 

weights should be assigned to pertinent data sets so the indices can be calculated. Eventually, this 

will be available as a story map, similar to what was developed for the Active Transportation Plan. 

 

Homes on the Hill Study 

MORPC is working with Homes on the Hill, a community development corporation on the west side of 

Franklin County to help them determine best locations for investing in properties. This work carries 

forth analyses the Kirwan Institute of OSU conducted in the area at a finer geographic level. Team 

Members anticipate having the project completed by the end of the year. 

 
GIS Coordination 

At the Central Ohio GIS User Group (COGUG) in November, Rob Powell presented the Regional Data 

Task Force findings, and explained the role that COGUG members would play by helping to establish 

data standards and entries for the data catalogue.  

  

MORPC helped organize a GIS Day event with OSU, Columbus and other partners. The OSU Library 

hosted the event where several presentations were given, including one by MORPC GIS Manager 

Cheri Mansperger. 

 

The Data Department is investigating other GIS departments’ workflows to help evaluate our 

processes and look for ways to collaborate. Data and Mapping Team Members met with City of 

Columbus and City of Dublin in November. 

  

Team Members are coordinating with other county LBRS managers to work towards standardizing 

core data elements so the various county files can be integrated into the state system. 

 

Diversity Team 

Team Members pulled together information about Limited English Proficiency to support MORPC’s 

Diversity Plan and address regulatory requirements from the Federal Transit Authority. We are 

working to make it easier for MORPC Team Members to choose minority vendors by merging multiple 

sources into one look-up table. 

 

  

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org


5 
 

Member Services 

 City of Columbus - Demographic reports were shared at the precinct level showing differences 

between 2000 and 2010. 

 State Representative Kevin Boyce – Assisted housing data were collected and shared with the 

representative at his request. 

 Upper Arlington Library - Population projections were developed for the library district. 

 Union County – Provided MORPC 2016 population estimates for MODE to use to calculate their 

dues. 

 Union County - Land use projections information were provided for the US 33 corridor economic 

study. 

 Worthington Libraries – MORPC prepared population estimates to the library district as a 

resource for their service planning study.  

 

MORPC Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Plan 

Team Members presented the draft Active Transportation Plan (ATP) to the Community Advisory 

Committee (CAC), the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC), and Transportation 

Policy/Commission. The ATP includes two tools for communities’ staff and decision makers to use in 

their planning activities:  

 an interactive story map which includes best practices information on infrastructure for 

pedestrians, bicyclists and transit  

 a Cost Estimator for estimating how much additional funding would be needed to build 

complete streets elements in conjunction with an infrastructure improvement project.  

For more information, visit www.morpc.org/ATP.  

 

Bike Users Map Update 

Team Members reviewed survey results from public outreach on how people use and would like to 

use the Bike Users Map. The next step is to work with a graphic design firm to determine the 

reprinting budget and project scope. Team Members aim to update and reprint the map by May 

2016. 

 

Complete Streets 

Team Members reviewed Ohio Public Works Commission Round 30 applications and plans for Alum 

Creek Drive between Refugee and Frebis and Refugee Road between Wheatfield and Woodstock.  

 

Age-Friendly Columbus  

MORPC continues to meet with potential funders to ensure the project can start in early 2016. Team 

Members held interviews for the Age-Friendly Community Coordinator position. Team Members 

attended a webinar hosted by AARP: Age-Friendly City Resources, which provided an overview of 

resources available to local governments interested in pursuing Age-Friendly City designation. 

 

Transportation Safety 

Team Members participated in the Columbus Area Pedestrian Safety Committee (CAPS) at Columbus 

Public Health. During the meeting, attendees discussed scheduling and implementation of multiple 

pedestrian safety education events. Columbus' pedestrian crosswalk stings received excellent media 

coverage to educate both motorists and pedestrians on rules of the road.  

 

On behalf of the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC), Team Members attended the Traffic 

Records Coordinating Committee. During the meeting, current initiatives were discussed including 

eCitations, LBRS compliance, and a new resolution/charter. The next meeting is March 15, 2016. 

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/ATP


6 
 

 

insight2050 

Team Members hosted a communications committee meeting where the members of the committee 

began a dialogue about how/when insight2050 should respond to related press; the matter will 

require further discussion. Members then broke out into working groups to begin progress toward 

key objectives in Phase II. 

 

Team Members met with Reynoldsburg City Schools to discuss the “Innovation Generation” program 

in the context of insight2050 best practices and to start exploring potential opportunities for 

collaboration.  

 

Team Members met with Columbus Public Health to discuss coordination of efforts to promote the 

public health benefits of insight2050. Columbus Public Health offered to lend technical assistance to 

review Phase II tools and resources for public health-related messaging.  

 

The City of Westerville representatives and Team Members met to discuss integration of insight2050 

into Westerville’s comprehensive plan. Team Members will assist by providing information that can 

reinforce the plan’s regional context and mobility recommendations, as well as identify how 

insight2050 can be integrated into the strategic corridor planning. 

 

Team Members and the City of Columbus Planning Division discussed incorporating insight2050 into 

the Northwest Area plan, which is in the process of being updated.  

 

Team Members hosted the insight2050 Academy Working Group to determine feasibility of 

implementing the insight2050 Academy program into insight2050 Phase II. The Working Group 

determined that it is feasible and has begun research and development of a pilot program. 

 

Team Members attended the annual meeting of the Capital Crossroads and Discovery Special 

Improvement Districts concerning attracting and retaining retail in our downtowns. 

 

insight2050 presentations were delivered to/at the Circleville Sunrise Rotary Club; the Central Ohio 

Land Title Association; Route 33 Corridor Crossroads Area Plan workshops in Jerome Township & 

City of Dublin; OSU Environmental Professionals Network; and the Affordable Housing Alliance. 

 

Greenways & Water Quality Program 

Team Members facilitated a meeting of the Water Quality Working Group. The main agenda topics 

included revitalizing the Working Group in the coming year, emerging policy issues, the 2016 

Greenways Scope of Services, and a presentation on Stormwater and National Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System (NPDES) from Franklin Soil & Water Conservation District.  

 

Team Members met with Columbus Department of Public Utilities (DPU) to discuss the 2016 

Greenways Scope of Services. That concluded meetings with Greenways funders regarding the 2016 

Scope.  

 

Team Members began planning efforts for 2016 Riverfest.  

 

Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board  

Team Members facilitated the COG Board monthly meeting with planningNEXT giving an overview of 

the Best Practices Report. COG members broke out into working teams to discuss the vision, 

mission, and goals. Working Teams are meeting monthly to work on year 1 priorities and develop 

long term goals. planningNEXT also shared the draft of the Best Practices report with board 

members for their input and review.  

 



7 
 

Team Members presented Sustaining Scioto at the Ohio Water Environment Association’s annual 

event. 

 

Team Members participated in the 12th Annual Olentangy Watershed Forum focused on best 

management practices for a healthy Olentangy Watershed.  

 

Team Members participated in a workshop hosted by Franklin Soil & Water Conservation District on 

community-based social marketing. The emphasis of the training was on how to change people’s 

behaviors instead of changing their minds when doing environmentally-focused outreach. 

 

Team Members participated in the Water Management Association of Ohio’s (WMAO) annual 

conference. Programming focused on climate adaptation, best practices, stormwater management, 

and water quality. 

 

National Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Conference 

The SRTS conference proposals were due October 31, 2015. Over 200 proposals were received. The 

SRTS Program Committee spent the month of November reviewing the proposals.  

 

Team Members are working on finalizing the contracts for keynote speakers Gil Penalosa and Kevin 

Carroll. 

 

Team Members visited Cincinnati with other members of the committee to learn about their SRTS 

program and the $4 million grant they received from Department of Justice (DOJ) to implement a 

comprehensive school crossing guard program. 

 

SRTS partners continue to reach out to interested parties about sponsorship opportunities and other 

partnerships for the conference. Interested parties can contact Amanda McEldowney at 

amceldowney@morpc.org or visit the conference's website at www.saferoutesconference.org.  

 

InfoShare 

Team Members facilitated an InfoShare meeting with Fairfield County. Housing and commercial 

development is picking up in Pickerington and Violet Township. The Carroll interchange on U.S. 33 

will be completed next year. Keller Market House, a food hub with a market, café, and commercial 

kitchen in downtown Lancaster, is expected to open next spring. 

 

Central Ohio Regional Food Council 

The Central Ohio Regional Food Council endorsed MORPC’s plans to seek funding to assess the 

demand for local food by major institutions and to develop strategies to increase the production and 

distribution of food for those institutions.  

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org 

 

Air Quality   

In November, MORPC Team Members presented the quarterly Air Quality update to CAC and TAC, 

which included an overview of educational efforts and the new ozone rule. MORPC Team Members 

submitted a session proposal for the Safe Routes to School Conference focused on air quality policy 

and innovative initiatives in Central Ohio.  

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group  

The Working Group meeting included a sneak-peek at the end of ozone season report presented by 

MORPC’s contracted meteorologists, Sonoma Technologies. As part of the discussion, the working 

group members were given the opportunity to provide feedback. The Ohio EPA provided an update 

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2015%20Commission/12%20-%20December/www.saferoutesconference.org
file:///C:/Users/cklein/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/UXWN1FYA/cokeeffe@morpc.org


8 
 

on the next steps involved in broadcasting the new ozone rule along with Section 111(d) of the Clean 

Air Act. MORPC Team Members presented the Air Quality program 2015 year in review as well.   

 

Clean Power Plan Subcommittee 

The subcommittee developed a working document that was presented to the Sustainability Advisory 

Committee and Regional Policy Roundtable for additional input. The subcommittee participated in a 

call to discuss the input from the Sustainability Advisory Committee. Dave Rinebolt, Ohio Partners for 

Affordable Energy, joined the call to discuss the Clean Energy Incentive Program (CEIP). The 

subcommittee was tasked by the Regional Policy Roundtable to study the CEIP and provide 

recommendations for comments. The subcommittee chair provided an update at the Energy & Air 

Quality Working Group meeting. The subcommittee will continue to research and evaluate the policy 

implications.  

 

Housing Services 

Franklin County Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

MORPC completed the 2013 funding round of the Franklin County Urgent Needs program with 100% 

of the units of service.   

 

Team Members continue work on the 2014 funding round of the Franklin County Urgent Needs 

program which runs through March 2016. Currently, 52% of the units are complete, 22% of the units 

are in the construction phase, and the rest are in the bidding process or contract closing or 

commitment stages. We anticipate all projects will be in construction by mid-December with 

completion in early 2016.   

 

MORPC also began work on the 2015 funding round of the Franklin County Urgent Needs program 

which runs through June 2017. All of the units of service eligible for the funding have applied for 

assistance. Approximately 46% have been identified by filling out the complete application. Several 

of these projects are in the inspection and bidding stages. Several projects are in the commitment 

stages for contract closings and will begin construction soon.  

 

MORPC Team Members submitted the application for the Franklin County Urgent Needs program 

2016 funding round and requested an increased level of funding to help with the continued need in 

Franklin County.  

 

The Franklin County Single-Family Rehabilitation program is complete and is preparing the final 

project payments and project close out.  

 

United Way of Central Ohio – Franklinton Neighborhood Home Repair  

All of the United Way Franklinton first round projects are complete. The second round of the program 

is underway, and Team Members have taken applications from eligible clients for 100% of the 

projects. Some of these are ready to close and begin construction; two projects are closing this 

month with construction to start soon. 
 

Weinland Park Home Repair 

Team Members identified all of the projects for the 2014 funding round of the Weinland Park 

program which consists of two separate groups of projects in varying stages of the process. Overall, 

nearly 90% of the work is complete compared to the goals for clients served; one unit is in the final 

construction phase and nearing completion. The last unit is currently under contract with 

construction to start soon. 

 

MORPC was awarded a final round of funding by The Columbus Foundation to complete the exterior 

home repair work in Weinland Park program. The new program round just began and construction on 

these projects will happen this coming winter, and spring and summer 2016.  



9 
 

 

Near East Side Exterior Home Repair Program 

The initial funding round of this pilot program through the partnership with PACT and Homeport was 

successfully completed in the summer of 2015. Homeport and PACT extended the program with 

additional funding for four new homeowners in the PACT area to receive exterior home repairs. Team 

Members reviewed the project specifications with PACT and will begin the bidding process by late 

November or early December. Construction may not begin until winter and continue into early spring 

2016 depending on the winter weather conditions.    

 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP)  

Team Members are working with the City of Columbus on a new NSP-2 agreement that utilizes 

recaptured funds from previous MORPC work. The new program includes strategic partnerships with 

COCIC and Homeport. Final changes to the agreement were discussed in mid-November and the 

contracts should be in place by late December or early next year for ground breaking in the early 

spring of 2016.  

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program 

The WarmChoice program is on track to meet our annual goal with 93% of completions achieved 

through November. In December MORPC will focus our efforts on completing final inspections on the 

remaining contractor work to close out 2015.  

 

Team Members are on track to submit an HWAP RFP on December 4, 2015 for Program Years 2016 

and 2017. MORPC continues to evaluate all in-process jobs for compliance with the HWAP Standard 

Work Specifications (SWS) that went into effect this program year and to proceed with production as 

work orders are updated accordingly. There are sufficient jobs in progress to achieve our annual 

production goal for the program year ending June 30, 2016.  

 

The 2015 State of Ohio EPP Program has been underway since July 1 with a dedicated focus on 

baseload audits to support MORPC’s increased funding allocation of $300,000.       

 

The AEP CAP program is approaching the end of this year’s eight-month contract (April thru 

December) and production is on pace to expend the total budget allocation. 

 

Materials Management Working Group 

The Working Group met on Tuesday, November 24, 2015. The agenda included a presentation from 

the City of Columbus Environmental Steward Erin Miller and SWACO Director of Innovation and 

Programming Kyle O’Keefe about a pilot initiative to reduce and recycle plastic bags through a 

targeted educational campaign. The initiative is on-going and the group is interested in regular 

updates. OSU Sustainability Coordinator Tony Gillund presented on the zero waste initiative at the 

Ohio Stadium in addition to overall campus recycling efforts. Bill Dorman with the City of Bexley 

shared updates about their expanded recycling efforts and plans to develop a zero waste plan for the 

city. The group was interested in hearing more about a Bexley pilot project with Goodwill in the 

future.      

 

Energy Special Improvement Districts (E-SIDs) and Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 

Team Members are preparing for the first PACE project to be approved which is currently under 

consideration by Columbus City Council. MORPC will work in partnership with the City and the 

Columbus-Franklin County Finance Authority to administer a project in downtown Columbus. The goal 

is to establish a regional PACE district that can attain shared services across political jurisdictions.   

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

Team Members continue to work across departments to report Working Group activities and assist 

with reports and planning for the Sustainability Advisory Committee. The next meeting is January 19, 



10 
 

2016.  

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

The annual budget will be presented to the Executive Committee and Commission for approval in 

December. The budget includes an executive summary and a presentation will be made to provide 

additional information and opportunity for discussion.  

 

The indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) for 2016 is prepared and awaiting ODOT approval. The fringe 

and overhead rates remain steady at the same rates as the prior year.  

 

For the 27th consecutive year, MORPC received the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for our 2014 Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report (CAFR). The GFOA established the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting Program (CAFR Program) to encourage and assist state and local governments to 

go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles to prepare 

comprehensive annual financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency and full disclosure 

and then to recognize individual governments that succeed in achieving that goal.  

  

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 
Recruiting  

The Energy Auditor position is filled and the HVAC Technician resumes are under review. Currently, 

MORPC is recruiting for four open positions:  

 Age-Friendly Community Coordinator  

 Customer Service & Outreach Intern 

 Energy Conservation Service Technician  

 Transportation Engineer/Planner Modeler 

The requirements for these positions are available for review on the website at www.morpc.org.  

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/shufstedler@morpc.org
file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/dmurphy@morpc.org
file:///C:/Users/cklein/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/UXWN1FYA/www.morpc.org


11 
 

ATTACHMENT 

 

Community Outreach  

MORPC Executive Director William Murdock participated in a sold-out Columbus Metropolitan Club 

forum focused on the future of transportation. The panel also had local transportation leaders Curtis 

Stitt, President & CEO of COTA, and Carla Bailo, Assistant Vice President for Mobility Research at 

OSU. The forum was moderated by Elissa Schneider, MORPC Board Member and Chair of Transit 

Columbus. The forum will be aired on the Ohio Channel via WOSU digital and Columbus Television at 

Channel 3 on Insight and Time Warner and channel 99 on Warner, WOW and AT&T U-Verse. For 

schedule details, visit ctv.columbus.gov. 

 

The insight2050 Communications Committee met and worked on the following strategies and 

efforts: develop key messages for the project’s insight 2050 Phase 2; building public engagement 

and media presence; and developing an insight2050 Planning Academy for local officials and 

residents. 

 

Executive Director William Murdock participated in ribbon cutting of the opening of the Scioto 

Greenways. The Scioto Greenways project creates 33 acres of new parkland and 1.5 miles of multi-

use trails. MORPC provided nearly $6 million on the two-year project and partnered with various 

groups including the City of Columbus, the Ohio Department of Transportation, the Columbus 

Recreation and Parks Department, and Franklin County Metro Parks. The project cost $36 million 

and included the removal of the Main Street dam, the planting of 800 trees, and the creation of up 

to 350 jobs.    

 

MORPC in the News - November 2015 

 Pickaway News Journal – Sunrise Rotary receives update from MORPC 

 ThisWeek Community News/Worthington News - Input on Huntley area improvements sought 

 Newark Advocate - Etna Township officials want to expand Ohio 310 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Hilltop’s stable neighborhoods also need support, Ohio State study 

says 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Riverfront reborn: Scioto Greenways project is a turning point for 

Columbus 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Local Government Insider: After 8 years in office, 27-year old council 

member retires 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Jaywalking Downtown? Columbus police start enforcement blitz today 

 ThisWeek Community News/Northland News - NCC officers oppose use of digital billboard 

 The Blade - OSU fans will see a healthier river next to stadium 

 Madison Press - Extension asks for budget increase: Additional $15,000 would be spent on 

programming 

 

Press Releases 

 Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Seeks Award Nominations from Central Ohio 

Community 

 MORPC Draft Active Transportation Plan provides new tools for Communities 

 Columbus Selected for Cities100 Publication 

 Funding Available to Enhance Mobility of Older Adults and Individuals with Disabilities - Proposals 

due January 27, 2016 

 

Website Activity 

MORPC’s online/social media efforts for November provide the following results: 

 MORPC’s Facebook page surpassed the 3,300 mark with 3,312 page likes to date. 

 MORPC had 37 Facebook posts during the month. 



12 
 

 People were most engaged with the MORPC Facebook page on November 22, when a link to a 

Toledo Balde article about the rejuvenation of the Olentangy River next to Ohio Stadium was 

posted. The article quoted MORPC’s David Rutter and reached more than 5,800 people and was 

shared 20 times. The second-most popular post was a Dispatch article about Columbus’s 

protected bike lanes on E. Livingston Ave. This reached over 1.3K people.  

 MORPC had 15.7 tweet impressions over the past month, with mentions increasing 90 percent, 

largely because of the interactive Twitter activity MORPC planned for the Columbus Metropolitan 

Club luncheon. 

 MORPC received about 40 new Twitter followers, bringing our total to 2,666. 

 Our top tweet was about the opening of Scioto Greenways downtown, which reached nearly 900 

users.  

 MORPC.org had more than 13.5K external pageviews in November, with 4.011 users in. There 

were 5.263 sessions. Two-thirds of page visitors were new. 

 As far as social media referring to the website, 86 percent of website sessions came from 

Facebook, followed by 11 percent from Twitter. 

 Those who are referred from social media are more likely to spend the most time on the website. 

Although most visitors are coming from organic searched and other direct links. 

 

 



MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

2016 Commission and Committee Meetings 

 

MEETING JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

Community Advisory Committee 
(Monday Before E-Committee, 5:30 pm-7:00 pm) 

4 - 
Feb 

29 
4 2 

Tue 

May 

31 

Tue 

5 
- 

Aug 

29 

Tue 

4 

Tue 

1 

Nov 

28 

Transportation Advisory Committee 
(Wednesday Before E-Committee, 9:00 am-10:00 am) 

6 - 2 6 4 1 6 - 
Aug 

31 
5 2 

Nov 

30 

Attributable Funds Committee 
(Generally Follows TAC, Wednesday, 10:00 am-Noon) 6 - 2 - - - 6 - 

Aug 

31 
5 2 

Nov 

30 

Executive Committee 
(1st Thursday, 1:30 pm-3:00 pm) 

7 - 3 7 5 2 7 - 1 6 3 1 

Commission/Transportation Policy Committee 
(2nd Thursday, 1:30 pm-3:00 pm) 

14 - 10 14 12 9 14 - 8 13 10 8 

Regional Policy Roundtable 
(Tuesday, 11:30 am-1:00 pm)                           

19 - - 19 - - 19 - - 18 - - 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 
(Tuesday, 2:30 pm--4:00 pm) 

19 - - 19 - - 19 - - 18 - - 

MORPC COMMITTEES 

Central Ohio Greenways Board 
 (4th Wednesday, 2:00 pm-4:00 pm) 

27 24 23 27 25 22 27 24 28 26 23 28 

Data Site Governance 
(3rd Thursday, 3:00 pm-4:30 pm) 

21 - 17 - 19 - 21 - 15 - 17 - 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group 
(Last Tuesday, 1:30 pm-3:00 pm or *2:00-3:30 pm) 

*26 - 29 - 24 - *26 - 27 - 29 - 

Greenways & Water Quality Working Group 
(1st Friday, 9:00 am-11:00 am) 

15 - 4 - - 3 - - 9 - - 2 

Materials Management Working Group 
(4th Wednesday, 10:00 am-11:30 am) 

27 - 23 - 25 - 27 - 28 - 16 - 

Regional Food Council 
(2nd Wednesday, 9:00 am-11:00 am) 

13 - 9 - 11 - 13 - 14 - 9 - 

MEETINGS FACILITATED OR HOSTED BY MORPC 

Central Ohio GIS Users Group 
(Wednesday, 2:00 pm-4:00 pm) 

- 17 - - 18 - - 17 - - 16 - 

Central Ohio Green Pact 
(9:00-10:30 am) 

- - 3 - - 2 - - 1 - 3 - 

Central Ohio Greenways Forum 
(March, June, December) - - 7 - - - 11 - - - - 12 

COTA/DATABus/MORPC Coordination 
(3rd Thursday, 9:00-11:00 am) 21 18 17 21 19 16 21 18 15 20 17 15 

Housing Advisory Board 
(2nd Tuesday, 11:00 am-12:30 pm) 

12 - 8 - 10 - 12 - 20 - 8 - 

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) 

Committee 
(Quarterly, 2:00-3:30 pm) 

27 - - 27 - - 27 - - 26 - - 

Mid-Ohio Finance Administrators  
(3rd Tuesday, Quarterly, 11:45 am-1:45 pm) 

26 - - 26 - - 26 - - 25 - - 

Natural Resources Assistance Council–Round 

10  
13 - - 6, 15 - - - - - - - - 

Northeast Area Group 
(Off site) 

- - - 13 - - - - - 4 - - 

Northwest Area Group 
(Off site) 

26 - - - - 21 - - - - - - 

OARC Executive Directors 
(4th Wednesday, 10:30 am-3:00 pm) 

- 24 - 27 - 22 - 24 - 26 - 21 

OARC Finance Directors 
(Friday, 10:00 am-3:00 pm)  

- - - - 13 - - - - 21 - - 

OARC Policy Committee 
(3rd Wednesday, 3:00 pm, Conference Call) 

- 17 - 20 - 15 - 17 - 19 - 14 

OARC RideShare/Air Quality Subcommittee 
(Friday, 10:00 am-Noon)                                          

- - 25 - - 24 - - 23 - - - 

OARC Transportation Directors 
(4th Friday, 10:00 am-2:00 pm)  

22 - 25 - 27 - 22 - 23 - 18 - 

Southeast Area Group 
(Off site) 

- - - 21 - - - - - 20 - - 

Southwest Area Group 
(Off site) 

- - 31 - - - - - 29 - - - 

   

 



2016 State of the Region Awards 
 

Deadline for receiving submissions is Friday, January 15, 2016.  Award submission forms are available on the 

MORPC website at www.morpc.org. Submissions for both awards will be reviewed by MORPC’s officers and executive 

director with a final determination to be made by the MORPC Executive Committee. Award nominees are only eligible 

to win the award the year they were nominated.  The Executive Committee will vote on winners no later than the 

March Executive Committee meeting. For more information contact Ciel Klein at cklein@morpc.org or 

614.233.4102.  

 
 

WILLIAM H. ANDERSON EXCELLENCE IN PUBLIC SERVICE AWARD 

 

The William H. Anderson Excellence in Public Service Award was established in 1992 to recognize a current or past 

board member who exemplifies outstanding leadership, a vision for the community and the region, and commitment 

to MORPC. William H. Anderson, a longtime MORPC board member, was the epitome of a civic volunteer who is 

remembered for his zeal with which he championed MORPC'S mission and goals. The winner must be a past or 

present MORPC board member. Only nominations from MORPC board members are accepted for this award. 
 

Past winners: 

 

2000 Dick Browning 

2001  Dave Elder 

2002 Debra Payne 

2003 John Doutt 

2004 David Madison 

2005  (none given) 

2006     (none given) 

2007  Ginny Barney and Mark Barbash 

2008     Herb Asher 

2009     Marilyn Brown 

2010     Bill Yaple 

2011     Tom Homan 

2012     Derrick Clay 

2013     Dean Ringle 

2014     Eric Phillips 

2015     Marsha Grigsby 

 

2015 Nominees: 

 Marsha Grigsby  

 Mayor Ike Stage  

 Ira Weiss  

 Rory McGuiness  

 

 

 

 

 

REGIONAL LEADERSHIP AWARD RECIPIENTS 

First introduced in 1997, the Regional Leadership Award recognizes individuals in MORPC’s 15-county region who 

make extraordinary efforts to ensure the future viability of the  communities in the region. The Regional Leadership 

Award is derived from the Commission's continuing dedication to addressing issues that transcend community 

boundaries and to stimulating visionary thinking. Nominations are accepted by MORPC board members and the 

community.  
 

Past winners: 

 

2000 Dave Lieser 

2001 Rich King 

2002 Don Wuertz 

2003 Art Wallace 

2004 Debbie Martin 

2005 Jack Lucks 

2006 Bill Habig 

2007   Mike Long 

2008     Ty Marsh 

2009     Elaine Roberts 

2010     Val Moeller 

2011     William Lhota 

2012     Ron Pizzuti 

2013     Kenny McDonald 

2014     Marjory Pizzuti 

2015     Michael Coleman 

 

2015 Nominees: 

 Mayor Michael Coleman  

 John O’Meara  

 Jack Knapp  

http://www.morpc.org/
mailto:cklein@morpc.org


 

 

 

 

William Habig Collaborative Achievement Award 

 

The William C. Habig Collaborative Achievement Award is MORPC’s newest honor.  The award was created in 2006 

in honor of William C. Habig, who served MORPC for 39 years, 34 years as executive director. The William C. Habig 

Collaborative Achievement award is annually presented to an individual or individuals who have achieved an 

effective effort or innovative collaborative in Central Ohio.   The honoree (s) will have demonstrated success in 

developing a specific initiative or entity that supported broad inclusion and encouraged diverse perspectives.  The 

initiative or entity will have delivered tangible results addressing key challenges facing the region. Nominations are 

accepted by MORPC board members and the community.  

 

Past winners: 

 

2007 MODE (2007) 

2008 Signers of the Central Ohio Green Pact  

2009 COPIN 

2010 Central Ohio Trauma System 

2011 Columbus Region Logistics Council 

2012 Capital Crossroads and Discovery Special 

Improvements District 

2013 Union County Council of Governments 

2014 ED411 

2015 Yaromir Steiner, Chair of insight2050 steering 

committee 

 

2015 Nominees: 

 1270/US33 Interchange Project Partnership  

 Yaromir Steiner, Chair of insight2050 steering committee   

 Jobs Expansion & Transportation (JET) Task Force   

 Senior Service Roundtable of Columbus & Franklin County  

 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

DATE: 

 

December 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 21-15: "ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL BUDGET 

AND FUND ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF THE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 2016" 

 
 

 

This resolution establishes an agency operating revenue budget of $13,996,017 for 

calendar year 2016 and sets authorized appropriation levels for the agency expense 

and capital expenditures budget line items. 

 

This resolution also authorizes an increase in the Associate Member dues rate from 

the pilot program rate of $500 to $1,000 for 2016. The pilot program for associate 

members has been successful, with seven local units of government currently 

participating associate members of MORPC.   

 

The full 2016 operating budget document with comparisons to the 2015 revised 

budget and an executive summary highlighting key elements of the 2016 budget is 

attached. 

 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 21-15 



RESOLUTION 21-15 

 

“ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL BUDGET AND FUND ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATION 

OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 2016” 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission annually adopts the agency budget and fund account appropriations; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the finance department, working with the executive director and all MORPC departments, 

has formulated the 2016 Budget and fund account appropriations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Budget includes an increase in Associate Member dues from the $500 pilot 

program rate to $1,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee has reviewed the 2016 Budget and fund account appropria-

tions and recommends adoption; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the operating budget attached as page 4 of the 2016 Budget is adopted. 

 

Section 2. That the finance director is hereby authorized and directed to adopt the 2016 fund 

appropriations as shown below and transfer funds up to the amounts listed in the 

transfer appropriation lines below. 
 

    Franklin    

Fund Org. County   2016 

No. No. Object   Appropriations 

    Code Account Title Budget 

9013 13570 510000 Salaries $4,800,547 

9013 13570 515000 Fringe Benefits 1,815,834 

9013 13570 520000 Services & Charges and Materials 7,221,596 

9013 13570 540000 

Capital outlay – Equipment, Prop-

erty Acquisition & Rehab 230,000 

9043 43570 540000 Capital outlay – Building 25,000 

9043 43570 520000 Services & Charges and Materials 100,000 

      TOTAL $14,192,977  

   
Initial Transfer(s): 

 9043 43570 575100 Transfer Appropriation - Out $125,000  

9013 13570 475100 Transfer Appropriation - In $125,000  

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

 



Resolution 21-15 

Page 2 

   

 

Section 4.  That the finance director is authorized and directed to make any necessary alloca-

tion changes within a single fund of the appropriations up to 5 percent of the total 

appropriations to accommodate operating and accounting requirements of the 

Commission. 

 

Section 5.  That an Associate Member annual dues amount of $1,000 beginning for 2016 is 

hereby adopted. 

 

Section 6.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: January 1, 2016 

Submitted by: Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:  Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 10, 2015 

 

Attachment:  2016 Budget  

    

 



 

 
 111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

 Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016 BUDGET 
 
 
 
 



PAGE 
NUMBERS PAGE DESCRIPTION

1 Executive Summary

4 Operating Revenue Budget / Change in Net  Assets

5 Detail of Member Dues

6 Schedule of Appropriations

APPENDIX

7-9 Detail Revenue by Department

10 Schedule of Funding Sources

11 Schedule of Subcontractors

12 Schedule of Capital Expenditures

13 Summary of Indirect Cost Allocation Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS



        1 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) 

2016 Operating and Capital Budget 

Executive Summary 

 

 

With a budget similar to 2015 in total, the MORPC 2016 operating revenue budget is 

$13,996,017, an increase of $597,515 (4.5%). However, the details show some changing 

initiatives and new programs. Here are some notable highlights for 2016: 

 

 The Planning & Environment, Data & Mapping, and Transportation Systems & 

Funding Activities departments’ budget increased by $938,317 (15.2%) primarily as 

a result of additional funding such as the 5310 Designated Recipient and the local 

funding in lieu of 5307 National Transit Database (NTD) funding. These programs 

that began in 2015 bring new transportation money into the region focusing on 

mobility and planning. The Safe Routes to School conference, Age-Friendly Columbus 

funding, and the Rickenbacker Study highlight other new planning initiatives 

anticipated in 2016. The Detailed Revenue by Department schedule beginning on 

page 7 shows additional detail on project fluctuations from year to year. 

 

 The Energy & Air Quality and Housing department remains steady at $6,404,987. 

This budget anticipates a slight increase in energy programs including Property 

Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) and an energy study. An agreement with Homeport to 

complete a Neighborhood Stabilization Program rehab project funded by the City of 

Columbus and increased funding for the Weinland Park area home repair show an 

increase in housing funding. A portion of the budget includes funding for 

undetermined projects in anticipation of additional funding and new programs in the 

energy arena. 

 

 The fringe rate will be 68.5% of wages in 2016. The indirect cost allocation rate will 

be 55.5% of direct labor in 2016.  Both of these rates are the same rates as 2015.  

Adjustments are being made to the fringe benefits in 2016 to keep the fringe rate 

the same as 2015 due to the increasing costs and high utilization of MORPC’s health 

care plan while maintaining a strong benefits package. Overhead costs continue to 

be analyzed for cost savings opportunities and efficiencies.  

 

 

Revenue (Funding Sources - page 10) 

 

Revenue from federal sources is budgeted to increase by $745,786 to a total of 

$7,480,002, which accounts for 53% of the operating budget.  The primary increase in 

budgeted revenue is FTA/FHWA funding which is primarily for the 5310 Designated 

Recipient program focusing on mobility. 

 

State funding is expected to decrease by $146,417 primarily due the sunset of some state-

funded projects, while the primary funding for transportation match and state infrastructure 

funding remained steady. 

 

Utility funding ($2,755,456 in 2016) is budgeted to decrease by $314,544 primarily as a 

result of a high estimate for Columbia Gas revenue in 2015.  Utilities funding is 

approximately 20% of total revenue and remains a stable funding area. 

 



        2 

 

Foundation/Corporate Funding is projected to be $311,000 in 2016, up $91,074 from 

2015, primarily as a result of an increase in funding from the Columbus Foundation and 

Campus Partners for the Weinland Park rehab project.  

 

Local and Other budgeted revenue is projected to increase by $703,367 to $2,569,206 

primarily due to various local projects expected in all departments. This includes additional 

funds from COTA in lieu of NTD funding, the Rickenbacker study, Safe Routes to School 

Conference, and Age Friendly Columbus funding. Some of this funding is unknown as to 

specific source for 2016 but presumed to be local for budgetary purposes. For example, the 

Safe Routes to School Conference sources may vary, but are all presumed to be local for the 

purposes of this budget.    

 

 

Expenses (page 4) 

 

Salaries and fringe benefits are budgeted to increase by $31,127 (0.5%) to $6,616,381 

primarily as a result of raises in aggregate of 2.5%, more than offset by a decrease in total 

staffing. Staff size was budgeted at approximately 77.9 FTE’s in 2015 and 75.3 FTE’s in 

2016. The decrease in FTE’s is the result of housing counseling staffing reductions due to 

the sunset of the program in 2015. 

 

The Materials and Supplies budget of $550,000 in 2016 is the same as 2015.   

 

The Services–Subcontractors budget decreased by $379,272 to $2,978,940 for 2016 due 

to decreases in the planned weatherization contractor costs, realigning with the budget for 

that area, as well as insight2050 Phase 2 and Chicago to Columbus Rail, neither of which 

are expected to have subcontractors in 2016. 

 

The Services and Charges budget increased by $940,660 to $3,792,656 as a result of 

multiple fluctuations over MORPC’s various programs in 2016 vs. 2015 but primarily due to 

the mobility vehicles that will need to be purchased for other organizations through the 5310 

Designated Recipient Program. 

 

 

Use of Member Dues (page 5) 

 

The total current year member dues budget of $935,736 is $42,552 higher than the prior 

year as a result of the 1.5 cent per capita increase in the RPC member dues rate, increased 

population and new members for 2016. Approximately $64,121 of this amount is budgeted 

to contribute toward the lease expenses.  $263,684 of the dues are set aside for MPO 

transportation match. Services to Members makes up the majority of the remaining funding 

with $435,566 budgeted for work for our members such as executive director services, 

proactive legislation and public policy work, and member services coordination. Additional 

funds were added to these areas in 2016. Other notable uses of member dues include 

$21,000 for diversity and inclusion efforts, up to $100,000 for building due diligence, and 

$32,000 for strategic initiatives. Member Dues represents approximately 7% of operating 

revenue.    

 

Additionally, the pilot program for associate members has been successful with seven local 

units of government currently participating members of MORPC.  This budget reflects an 

increase in associate member dues rate from the pilot rate of $500 in 2015 and prior years 

to $1,000 annually in 2016. 



        3 

 

 

Capital Expenditures (page 12) 

 

The capital expenditures budget for 2016 is $255,000. This is a decrease of $325,000 from 

2015 since we are no longer acquiring property and rehabilitating the property in the 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program. (The 2016 NSP home purchase will be made by 

Homeport, resulting in subcontractor costs to MORPC instead of capital costs.) This budget 

includes $200,000 for replacement of computers, vehicles and other agency equipment and 

assets; $30,000 for copier and equipment capital lease costs; $25,000 for leasehold 

improvements.  

 

 

Appropriations (page 6) 

 

The appropriations closely mirror the agency operating expenses and capital expenditures, 

coming in at $14,192,977 for 2016. Consistent with the operating expenses, the service & 

charges area shows the largest increase from 2015 as a result of such programs as the 

5310 program. 



OPERATING REVENUE BUDGET

OPERATING BUDGET BY DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND 
TRANSPORTATION

Jointly Funded Projects (MPO) $2,887,310 $2,636,840 ($250,470)

Infrastructure 195,000 205,000 10,000

Special Projects 1,762,565 2,256,322 493,757

Ride Solutions 715,000 688,268 (26,732)

Local Projects Transportation 187,804 437,618 249,814

Other Misc. Environment 444,489 906,437 461,948

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION $6,192,168 $7,130,485 $938,317

ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES

Air Quality $358,635 $385,020 $26,385

Other Energy Programs 3,882,250 3,954,130 71,880

Housing, Rehab and Community Services 2,091,512 2,065,838 (25,674)

SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY and HOUSING SERVICES $6,332,397 $6,404,987 $72,590

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT $596,453 $667,055 $70,602

OTHER $277,484 ($206,510) ($483,994)

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $13,398,502 $13,996,017 $597,515

Detail Budgets provided on pages 7-9

OPERATING EXPENSES: 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Salaries and Fringe Benefits $6,585,254 $6,616,381 $31,127

Materials and Supplies 550,000 550,000 0

Services - Subcontractors 3,358,212 2,978,940 (379,272)

Services & Charges 2,851,996 3,792,656 940,660

Depreciation 45,540 45,540 0

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $13,391,002 $13,983,517 $592,515

Change In Net Assets from Operations $7,500 $12,500 $5,000

2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

   Building Fund Interest $2,000 $5,000 $3,000

   Neighborhood Stabilization Program Houses 300,000 0 (300,000)

   Contributed Assets 100,000 100,000 0

Less: Depreciation Expense Contributed Assets (21,000) (21,000) 0

          Leasehold Improvements (6,000) (6,000) 0

 Capital Contributions Net  of Depreciation $375,000 $78,000 ($297,000)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $382,500 $90,500 ($292,000)

OPERATING EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

4



DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES

SOURCES: 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

RPC Member Dues ($.275- 2015, $.29- 2016) $513,000 $540,398 $27,398
MPO Member Dues ( $.18- 2015, $.19.5- 2016) 316,184 331,217 15,033
Building ($.035- 2015, $.035- 2016) 64,000 64,121 121
SUBTOTAL SOURCES $893,184 $935,736 $42,552

Withdrawals from Building Reserve $100,000 $125,000 $25,000
TOTAL SOURCES $993,184 $1,060,736 $67,552

USES:

Transportation $288,731 $263,684 ($25,047)
Foundations Grants & Other 8,000 5,000 (3,000)

SUBTOTAL LOCAL MATCH $296,731 $268,684 ($28,047)

Executive Director Services to Members $60,000 $70,000 $10,000
Proactive Legislative Activity 143,692 148,281 4,589
Public Policy & Multi-jurisdictional 66,959 73,266 6,307
Member Service Coordination 87,078 88,710 1,632
HR Services & Annual Salary Survey 5,000 5,000 0
Mid Ohio Finance Administrators (MOFA) 1,850 1,900 50
Other Services to Members 35,009 48,409 13,400

SUBTOTAL FOR SERVICES TO MEMBERS $399,588 $435,566 $35,978

Executive Director Development $60,000 $70,000 $10,000
Executive Director & Staff Travel & Registration 6,775 10,500 3,725
Board Travel & Registration 3,600 3,600 0
Other Development/Business Development 10,990 12,065 1,075

SUBTOTAL DEVELOPMENT FUND $81,365 $96,165 $14,800

Strategic Initiatives $20,000 $32,000 $12,000
Diversity & Inclusion 21,000 21,000 0
Miscellaneous 3,000 5,700 2,700
Contingency & Cost Overruns 7,500 12,500 5,000

SUBTOTAL OTHER $51,500 $71,200 $19,700

Building Lease Expense $64,000 $64,121 $121
Building Due Diligence 50,000 100,000 50,000
Leasehold Improvements (Capital Expenditures) 50,000 25,000 (25,000)

SUBTOTAL OTHER $164,000 $189,121 $25,121

TOTAL USES OF MEMBER PER-CAPITA FEES $993,184 $1,060,736 $67,552

NOTE:  Some line items were reclassified from Other to Services to Members to conform to 2016 Presentation. 

5



ACCT # ACCOUNT TITLES 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

SALARIES 
Salaries - Regular $4,695,476 $4,755,547 $60,071
Salaries - Vacation and Sick Leave Payout 45,000 45,000 0

510000 SUBTOTAL SALARIES $4,740,476 $4,800,547 $60,071

FRINGE BENEFITS
PERS - Regular $663,667 $665,777 $2,110
PERS - Vacation and Sick Leave Payout 6,300 6,300 0

SUBTOTAL PERS $669,967 $672,077 $2,110

Medicare Tax $68,737 $69,608 $871
Unemployment Compensation 14,221 5,400 (8,821)
Workers Compensation 43,612 47,376 3,764
Fringe Benefits Other (includes group 1,048,241 1,021,373 (26,868)
medical, dental, vision, life and disability)

515000 SUBTOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $1,844,778 $1,815,834 ($28,944)

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS $6,585,254 $6,616,381 $31,127

Materials and Supplies $550,000 $550,000 $0

Services and Charges:  
Subcontractors $3,358,212 $2,978,940 ($379,272)
Services and Charges 2,262,996 3,272,656 1,009,660
Rent and Utilities 450,000 450,000 0
Travel 70,000 70,000 0

520000

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & CHARGES and 
MATERIALS $6,691,208 $7,321,596 $630,388

550000 DPA/Mortgage Assistance $69,000 $0 ($69,000)

$13,345,462 $13,937,977 $592,515

Capital Expenditures
540000 Computer Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $200,000 $200,000 $0
540000 FC Neighborhood Stabilization Program 300,000 0 (300,000)

    property acquisition/rehab
540000 Leasehold Improvements 50,000 25,000 (25,000)
540000 Capital Lease Payments 30,000 30,000 0

$580,000 $255,000 ($325,000)

$13,925,462 $14,192,977 $267,515TOTAL

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

 

 

 



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND 
TRANSPORTATION 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MPO (Jointly Funded Projects)

Federal Highway Administration $2,309,848 $2,109,472 ($200,376)

Ohio Department of Transportation 288,731 263,684 (25,047)

MORPC Transportation Match 288,731 263,684 (25,047)

SUBTOTAL OF JOINTLY FUNDED PROJECTS $2,887,310 $2,636,840 ($250,470)
Infrastructure (OPWC/members)

Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $195,000 $205,000 $10,000

SUBTOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM $195,000 $205,000 $10,000

Special Projects

Regional Transportation Planning Supplement FY 15 $219,118 $0 ($219,118)

Regional Transportation Planning Supplement FY 16 198,832 309,907 111,075

Regional Transportation Planning Supplement FY 17 (NUC) 0 171,781 171,781

Freight Trends Study  44,664 45,600 936

Human Services Transportation Coordination 48,626 0 (48,626)

5310 Designated Recipient -2015 395,275 536,565 141,290

5310 Designated Recipient -2016 0 603,686 603,686

5310 Designated Recipient -2017 0 103,686 103,686

Rural Transportation Partnership 53,362 21,996 (31,366)

Rural Transportation Planning Organization Pilot 0 90,427 90,427

Regional Growth Impact Study  (insight2050 Phase 1) 16,767 0 (16,767)

Regional Development III  (insight2050 Phase 2) 330,000 248,007 (81,993)

Economic Impact of Trails 55,000 0 (55,000)

Clean Fuels Ohio 2,000 0 (2,000)

Chicago to Columbus Rail  (NUC) 300,000 0 (300,000)

Special Projects  (NUC) 98,921 124,667 25,746

SUBTOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS $1,762,565 $2,256,322 $493,757

Ride Solutions

Ride Solutions $715,000 $688,268 ($26,732)

SUBTOTAL RIDE SOLUTIONS $715,000 $688,268 ($26,732)

Local Projects

Prairie Township LGIF (NUC) $0 $10,000 $10,000

Targeted Area Bus Pass Program 0 100,000 100,000

CMHA Choice Grant 10,000 0 (10,000)

Competitive Advantage Program 167,225 113,650 (53,575)

Rickenbacker Study (NUC) 0 100,000 100,000

Homes on the Hill 0 15,000 15,000

Data & Mapping, Other 0 25,000 25,000

Other Local Transportation Projects (NUC) 10,579 73,968 63,389

SUBTOTAL LOCAL PROJECTS $187,804 $437,618 $249,814

Other Planning & Environment

Effects of Climate Change $131,845 $0 ($131,845)

Greenways Program 140,000 194,657 54,657

Age Friendly Columbus (NUC) 0 209,165 209,165

OWDA - Greater Ohio Policy - Phase 2 (NUC) 0 20,000 20,000

319 Grant from Franklin Soil & Water (NUC) 0 30,000 30,000

Safe Routes to School Conference 0 267,893 267,893

Summit On Sustainability 65,000 70,000 5,000

Local Foods 0 25,000 25,000

Other Planning & Environment (NUC) 107,644 89,722 (17,922)

SUBTOTAL OTHER PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT $444,489 $906,437 $461,948

TOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION $6,192,168 $7,130,485 $938,317

NUC = Not Under Contract

7



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Air Quality
Air Quality $358,635 $385,020 $26,385

SUBTOTAL FOR AIR QUALITY $358,635 $385,020 $26,385

Residential & Other Energy 

Columbia Gas $2,520,000 $2,138,054 ($381,946)

HWAP 651,607 776,847 125,240

AEP 400,000 317,400 (82,600)

USF EPP Program 150,000 300,000 150,000

Franklin County Energy Study/Planning (NUC) 0 100,000 100,000

Energy Project/PACE 0 25,000 25,000

Various Grants Energy & AQ Potential (NUC) 47,558 296,829 249,271

SUBTOTAL FOR RESIDENTIAL & OTHER ENERGY $3,882,250 $3,954,130 $71,880

SUBTOTAL ENERGY AND AIR QUALITY $4,240,885 $4,339,149 $98,264

HOUSING & C0MMUNITY SERVICES
Residential Rehabilitation Programs
Franklin County Single Family Rehab Program $56,700 $0 ($56,700)

Franklin County Home Repair Program 1,114,992 1,049,452 (65,540)

Homeport / PACT 0 72,000 72,000

United Way Home Repair Program 241,611 154,890 (86,721)

Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 105,160 374,030 268,870

Weinland Park Program 158,300 310,999 152,699

HOPE 3 Administration 2,885 1,000 (1,885)

Mortgages Forgiven 21,880 22,800 920

Various Rehab Grants Potential (NUC) 67,935 43,155 (24,780)

SUBTOTAL RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION PROGRAMS $1,769,463 $2,028,326 $258,863

Homebuyer Counseling Program

Franklin County Homebuyer Counseling $16,600 $0 ($16,600)

OHFA Restoring Stability 15,000 12,800 (2,200)

Third Federal HBC 11,225 0 (11,225)

PNC 2,547 0 (2,547)

Bank of America 2,296 0 (2,296)

National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program (NFMC) 82,900 0 (82,900)

HUD Counseling Program 20,579 0 (20,579)

ODSA OHTF Counseling & DPA 78,218 0 (78,218)

Other Homebuyer Counseling 72,256 0 (72,256)

SUBTOTAL HOMEBUYER COUNSELING PROGRAMS $301,621 $12,800 ($288,821)

Housing Advisory Board (HAB)

FC Issuer Fees and Monitoring $10,500 $12,297 $1,797
Franklin County HAB 9,928 12,415 2,487

SUBTOTAL FOR HOUSING ADVISORY BOARD $20,428 $24,712 $4,284

SUBTOTAL FOR HOUSING & C0MMUNITY SERVICES $2,091,512 $2,065,838 ($25,674)

TOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING & COMMUNITY 
SERVICES $6,332,397 $6,404,987 $72,590

NUC = Not Under Contract

8



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Services to Members $399,588 $435,566 $35,978
Development Fund 81,365 96,164 14,799

Building Lease Payments 64,000 64,122 122
Other 51,500 71,203 19,703

TOTAL MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT (See Dues Page for 
Details) $596,453 $667,055 $70,602

OTHER 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Other Revenue
RidePro HUB/WEB $37,000 $20,000 ($17,000)
Ride Pro TRIP 6,703 0 (6,703)
Summer Intern Program 0 10,800 10,800
CMS Shared Services 989 200 (789)
State of the Region Luncheon 74,000 75,000 1,000
Building Funds Interest 2,000 5,000 3,000
Building Due Diligence * 50,000 100,000 50,000
Indirect Costs Variance (carryforward from prior years) 58,026 (181,618) (239,644)
Fringe Benefits Variance (carryforward from prior years) 48,766 (235,892) (284,658)

TOTAL OTHER $277,484 ($206,510) ($483,994)

GRAND TOTAL $13,398,502 $13,996,017 $597,515

NUC = Not Under Contract
* Building Due Diligence is funded from prior years' Member Dues

NOTE:  Some line items were reclassified from Other to Services to Members to conform to 2016 Presentation. 

9



Schedule of Funding Sources

Funding Sources 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MEMBER DUES $893,184 $935,736 $42,552

FEDERAL FUNDING
Federal Highway Administration (MPO funding) $2,309,848 $2,109,472 ($200,376)
FTA/FHWA (other funding) 2,224,080 3,161,187 937,107
Ride Pro HUB/WEB/Trip 43,703 20,000 (23,703)
US EPA Climate Showcase 75,767 0 (75,767)
HUD - Community Development Block Grant 1,227,562 1,061,867 (165,695)
HUD - Home and HOPE 3 & Other 103,749 23,799 (79,950)
NSP 2 Program 0 314,030 314,030
Other Federal 97,900 12,800 (85,100)
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 651,607 776,847 125,240

SUBTOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING $6,734,216 $7,480,002 $745,786

STATE FUNDING
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO funding) $288,731 $277,126 ($11,605)
Ohio Department of Transportation Other 10,672 20,000 9,328
Ohio Public Works Commission (Infrastructure) 65,000 65,000 0
Ohio Water Development Authority 65,923 0 (65,923)
Ohio Housing Trust Fund 78,218 0 (78,218)

SUBTOTAL STATE FUNDING $508,544 $362,127 ($146,417)

UTILITIES $3,070,000 $2,755,456 ($314,544)

FOUNDATION/CORPORTATE FUNDING .
Weinland Park/Cols Fdtn/Campus Partners/Chase $158,300 $311,000 $152,700
Banks - Homebuyer Counseling 16,068 0 (16,068)
Other Foundation & Corporate (NUC) 45,558 0 (45,558)

SUBTOTAL FOUNDATION/CORPORATE FUNDING $219,926 $311,000 $91,074

LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING
Infrastructure & Clean Ohio $130,000 $140,000 $10,000
Greenways Planning 140,000 164,655 24,655
Central Ohio Summit (Sustainability & the Environment) 65,000 70,000 5,000
Housing Local Contracts 415,714 342,342 (73,372)
Environment, Mapping & Transportation Local Funds 742,668 1,241,879 499,211
State of the Region 74,000 75,000 1,000
Energy and Air Quality 73,901 419,329 345,428
Summer Intern Program 0 10,800 10,800
Other 222,556 100,201 (122,355)
Building Sale Proceeds Interest 2,000 5,000 3,000

SUBTOTAL LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING $1,865,839 $2,569,206 $703,367

Interperiod Overhead Receivable/(Reserve) $58,026 ($181,618) ($239,644)
Interperiod Fringe Benefits Receivable/(Reserve) 48,766 (235,891) (284,657)

TOTAL REVENUES BY FUNDING SOURCE $13,398,501 $13,996,017 $597,517

10



SUBCONTRACTORS BY DEPARTMENT 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION

Regional Supplement FY 15 $30,000 $0 ($30,000)

Regional Supplement FY 16 10,000 20,000 10,000

Regional Supplement FY 17 0 20,000 20,000

5310 Designated Recipient 0 0 0

Greenways Funding 0 5,000 5,000

Regional Development lll (insight2050 Phase 2) 100,000 0 (100,000)

Economic Impact of Trails 55,000 0 (55,000)

Chicago to Columbus Rail 300,000 0 (300,000)

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL, MAPPING & TRANSPORTAION $495,000 $45,000 ($450,000)

Energy & Air Quality

Air Quality $70,000 $70,000 $0

Columbia Gas WarmChoice 1,158,000 860,719 (297,281)

Home Weatherization Assistance Program 235,695 260,627 24,932

AEP Ohio Partners for Affordable Energy (OPAE) 85,987 111,721 25,734

SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY $1,549,682 $1,303,067 ($246,615)

Housing & Community Services

Franklin County Single Family Rehabilitation $56,700 $0 ($56,700)

United Way Home Repair 208,930 121,890 (87,040)

Homeport / PACT 0 55,200 55,200

Weinland Park Program 143,300 206,000 62,700

Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 0 364,131 364,131

Franklin County Home Repair Program 904,600 883,652 (20,948)

SUBTOTAL HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES $1,313,530 $1,630,873 $317,343

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $3,358,212 $2,978,940 ($379,272)

NUC - Not Under Contract

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

11



SOURCES OF FUNDS 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Cash $100,000 $100,000 $0

Building Improvement Reserve 50,000 25,000 (25,000)

Contributed Capital 100,000 100,000 0

Capital Lease - Overhead Cost Allocations 30,000 30,000 0

Neighborhood Stabilization Program Income 300,000 0 (300,000)

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $580,000 $255,000 ($325,000)

USES OF FUNDS 2015 BUDGET 2016 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Computer Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $100,000 $100,000 $0

Leasehold Improvements 50,000 25,000 (25,000)

Contributed Capital Acquisitions 100,000 100,000 0

Capital Lease 30,000 30,000 0

Neighborhood Stabilization Program Property Acquisition & Rehab 300,000 0 (300,000)

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $580,000 $255,000 ($325,000)

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

12



Indirect Cost Allocation Budget
January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016

DIRECT LABOR TOTAL INDIRECT

& FRINGES ALLOCATION

Environment, Mapping & Transportation $3,249,523 $1,803,485

Energy & Air Quality, Housing Services 1,375,642 763,481

Member Dues 257,692 143,019

Other Grants & Programs 71,085 39,452

Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding (217,365) (120,638)

TOTAL GRANTS & PROGRAMS $4,736,577 $2,628,800

Indirect Labor
Information & Technology Services $238,448

Finance  592,992

Public & Government Affairs 265,179

Executive Management 320,592

Human Resources & Administration 184,506

Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 38,934

TOTAL INDIRECT LABOR $1,640,651

General Overhead Expenses
Materials & Supplies $37,300

Services & Charges 334,135

Rent & Utilities 327,100

Other General Overhead 87,996

TOTAL GENERAL OVERHEAD $786,531

Retention/Severance $20,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $2,447,182

ACTUAL INDIRECT RATES 51.67%

Carry Forward Balance as of  12/31/14 $181,618

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS $2,628,800

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS RATES 55.50%

INDIRECT GENERAL 

LABOR OVERHEAD TOTAL

Information & Technology Services $238,448 $124,225 $362,673

Human Resources 97,501 32,157 129,658

Administration 87,005 363,170 450,175

Retention/Severance 0 20,000 20,000

Finance  592,992 199,988 792,980

Public & Government Affairs 265,179 48,150 313,329

Executive Management 320,592 7,775 328,367

Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 38,934 11,066 50,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $1,640,651 $806,531 $2,447,182

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, November 12, 2015 

2:45 p.m. 
Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Jeff Benton 

Pat Blayney 

Stacey Boumis 

Randy Bowman 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Ron Bullard 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

John Eisel 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Pamela Hykes O’Grady 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Bill LaFayette 

Greg Lestini 

Barb Lewis 

Brian Lorenz 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Rory McGuiness 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Cornell Robertson for 

  Dean Ringle 

Jim Schimmer 

Ashley Senn 

David Simmons 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

Scott Tourville 

Nancy White

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman Steve Stolte 

 

Associate Members 

Nikki Scarpitti  

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Rob Powell 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

 

Guests 

John Gettings 

Jung Kim, Columbus 2020 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:45 p.m. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  - Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

By the end of the year, MORPC hopes to finalize an agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation for 

a pilot grant for Rural Transportation Planning in the counties just outside the MPO.  MORPC is working with 

Union and Fairfield Counties. The goal is to partner with six or seven counties on the pilot. 

 

The Community Advisory Committee (CAC) and the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) are 

recommending bodies to the Transportation Policy Committee. The CAC reorganized in 2014 and has open 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2015 

Page 2 

 
positions for representatives outside Franklin County. The TAC had an overwhelming response to an open 

position in 2015. As a result, they are considering Bylaws changes regarding membership. 

 

The District 3 Public Works Integrating Committee is seeking nominations to fill a three-year term on the 

Franklin County National Resources Assistance Council (NRAC). 

 

ODOT received a $6 million TIGER grant award for rural transit improvements. No Central Ohio projects were 

selected for a TIGER grant this year.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Ike Stage made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, a second was made; motion passed. 

 

Active Transportation Plan – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & Environment Director 

Kerstin Carr presented the Draft 2016-2040 Columbus Area Active Transportation Plan. Amelia Costanzo is 

the MORPC Lead Team Member for the Active Transportation Plan (ATP). For the past 18 months, MORPC 

Team Members have been working with three advisory groups representing communities and special interests 

from across the transportation planning area to develop this regional planning resource that is intended for 

communities’ planners and engineers to use for their own transportation planning. The ATP is part of the 

2016–2040 Columbus Area Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) and is integrated into the MTP through 

project evaluation criteria, objectives and strategies.  

  

The Active Transportation Plan Working Group helped determine the major deliverables of this project: 

 Identification of 12 Key Regional Corridors which are the geographical focus of the plan. 

 An interactive map providing information such as data on transit routes, bike facilities, and sidewalks, 

areas that are likely to be accessed by people on foot, bike or transit, crash locations, and more. 

 Best practices for making sure people who are walking, biking, and using transit can move about 

safely and efficiently. 

 A tool to estimate the additional cost of adding sidewalks or bike facilities to an existing transportation 

infrastructure project. 

 

The Active Transportation Plan is at www.morpc.org/atp. It is web-based and organized in a way to make it as 

user-friendly as possible. It includes: 

 The story map is an interactive map that tells the story about the ATP as well as serves as a tool for 

communities to implement active transportation projects.  

 The cost estimating tool is an excel file that estimates a range of cost to add any combination of bike 

lanes, multi-use paths and sidewalks to a community’s transportation project already planned for 

construction. 

 Advisory Groups meeting summaries and next steps (Process). 

 PDf maps and best practices (Extras). 

 Ability to directly email MORPC with questions or comments about the ATP (Contact Us). 

 

The public review and comment period is now through January 2016. MORPC Team Members will be 

presenting the Active Transportation Plan and Metropolitan Transportation Plan at communities’ planning 

commission and council meetings across the region during this time. The plan will be finalized in April and will 

be updated regularly. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding 

Director 

Thea Walsh presented the 2016-2040 MTP Draft Strategies. Copies of the latest MTP Fact Sheet were 

provided. The draft strategies are used in the project selection process. Maria Schaper is the MORPC Lead 

Team Member for the MTP.  

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-12-2015ATP.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/atp
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-12-2015MTPDraftStrategies.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/MTP_OnePager-November2015.pdf


Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2015 

Page 3 

 
The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 3:03 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  



 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

 

DATE: 

 

December 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-21-15: "AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR 

(SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM" 

 

Proposed Resolution T-21-15 will add or modify seven projects on the SFY 2016-

2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over 

$212 million. These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance 

using the identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint. In January, 

the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) will ask the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to amend the 

Statewide TIP to include these changes.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of 

each project, including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components. The 

amendment includes four projects affecting MORPC-attributable funds: 

 

 COTA: 2016 Bus Replacement 

 Etna Township: Taylor Road Minor Widening 

 ODOT District 6: SR-161 Feasibility Study through Linworth 

 ODOT District 6: Regional Pedestrian Signals 

 ODOT District 6: I-70/I-71 Project 4A 

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP.  

 

COTA (Central Ohio Transit Authority) requested the following modifications to existing 

projects in the TIP: 

 Correct funding for the Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit project. 

 Increase State-Attributable Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

funding by $1,017,962 and reduce Section 5307 funding by $1,708,001 for 

the 2016 Bus Replacement. There is no change to the MORPC-Attributable 

CMAQ commitment. 

 Increase Section 5307 funding by $113,791 to purchase 2 additional 

vehicles through the 2016 Paratransit Replacement.  



 
Resolution T-21-15 Memo 

Page 2 

Etna Township requested an increase to the amount of MORPC-attributable funds for 

construction of the minor widening of Taylor Road. Trees had to be removed in 

advance of roadway construction to allow utility relocation to begin, and the cost of 

the removal was much higher than estimated, pushing the total construction 

estimate over the cap limit.  

 

ODOT District 6 requested the following modifications to the TIP: 

 Add a study to identify feasible improvements on the SR 161 corridor through 

Linworth. This would be a new commitment of $30,000 of MORPC-

attributable STP funds. Other contributors include Columbus, ODOT, 

Worthington and Perry Township. 

 Add a project to install pedestrian signals at various locations in Central Ohio. 

This is Phase 2 of the Regionwide Systematic Safety Improvement project, to 

which MORPC in 2013 committed $200,000 of STP funds. 

 Reduce funding for right-of-way on I-70/I-71 Project 4A. The right-of-way 

phase was carried over from the previous TIP with $13.7 million. The current 

funding is $6 million. There is no change to the MORPC-Attributable funding 

commitment. 

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachments: 

 Project Map 

 Proposed Resolution T-21-15 



!
!
!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!

!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!

!

§̈¦70

§̈¦270

§̈¦270

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦71

£¤33

£¤23

£¤23

£¤40

£¤33

£¤33

£¤62

£¤36

£¤23

£¤42

£¤40

£¤36

£¤62

£¤42

¬«656

¬«158

¬«161

¬«161

¬«229

¬«521

¬«665

¬«315

¬«37

¬«3

¬«750

¬«37

¬«256

¬«674

¬«317 ¬«16

¬«3

¬«204

¬«710

¬«310

¬«104
¬«317

¬«203

¬«605

¬«745

¬«61

¬«257

WOODTOWN RD

TR E NTON R D

M AIN ST

MINK STRE E T R D

S S
EC

TIO
N 

LIN
E R

D

MOCK RD

TAYLOR RD

FRANK RD

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

AV
E

ELDER LN

H
OR S E SH O E

RD

N H
AM

ILT
ON

 RD

SUMMIT VIEW RD

POLA R IS PK WY

LEW IS C ENTER RD

HOLTON RD

E COLL EGE AV E

PA
RS

ON
S A

VE

CHESHIRE RD

GL ICK R D

LI
BE

RT
Y

R D

N 
SU

NB
UR

Y R
D

SNOUFFER RD

DARBY
CRE EK

DR

S U LLIVA NT AV E

E MAIN ST

REFUGEE RD

W LA N E AV E

COSGRAY RD

WILLIAMS RD

FISHINGER RD

WEST CASE RD

MO O B ER R Y ST

HARD RD

T RABUE RD

ROBERTS RD

DUBL IN
R D

G EORG ESVIL LE R D

WA
TK

IN
S R

D 
SW

KA
RL

 RD

JOH NSTO WN R D

SHIER-RINGS RD

HOM E RD

KING AVE

ORION PL

E A STO N W AY

KI
TZ

M
I LL

ER
R

D

WH ITE R D

P O R
T

R D

HA
MI

LT
ON

 RD

B IX B Y RD

RO W E R D

SUNBURY R
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE RD

R EFU GEE R D

SMILEY RD

G
AN

TZ
RD

LAZELLE RD

CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
AV

E

RADNOR RD

ROHR RD

H OSKINS R D

CENTERBURG

R D

AR
LIN

GT
ON

 AV
E

W INCHESTER RD N W

HE
ND

RO
N 

RD

NO
RT

ON
R D

NOR T ON RD

MA
IZE

 R
D

GROVES RD

LEE
 RD

S OL
D

3C
HW

Y

E WHITTIER ST

W INCH ESTER PIK E

H AR RIO TT R D

CHATT ER TON R D

E POW ELL RD

B OW
TOWN

R D

E LIVINGSTON AVE

A GLER R D

ALKIRE RD

FISHER RD

C OUN TY
R O

AD
6 0

5

HOME RD

B R IGG S R D

LI THO POL IS RD

E LO N G ST

MORSE RD

GROVE CITY RD

OP OS SUM RUN
RD

JO
YC

E
A V

E
FA

IRW
OO

D 
AV

E

E 17TH AVE

BRAND R D

ACKERMAN RD

E 2ND AVE

EB
RIG

HT
 R

D

DELL ING E R R D

OT
IS 

ST

HYATTS RD

SH
OO

K 
RD

DERING AVE

DARBY ST

M
AP

LE
C A

N Y
O N

AV
E

SP
IN

DL
ER

 R
D

MCCUTCHEON RD

N 
SP

RIN
G 

RD

E HUDSON ST

PARK RD

BETHEL RD

TU
S S

I C
ST

RE
ET

RD

W GR A NV ILLE ST

B IG
RUN SOU T H

RD

E 5TH AVE

IN
DI

AN
OL

A A
VE

E 11TH AVE

R ENS CH RD

MORSE RD

S
M

A IN
S T

MCK INLEY
AVE

N L
IBE

RT
Y S

T

AVERY RD

N MAIN ST

E WEBER RD

CLA R K STATE R D

S Y
EA

RL
IN

G 
RD

B URN T
POND

RD

C LIM E RD

S HIGH ST

FERRIS RD
COR R RD

HA NO V ER R D

LO
CK

BO
UR

NE
 R

D

THURMAN AVE

OAK ST

E COOKE RD

E LINCOLN AVE

VA N S VA LLE Y R D

H O
OV

ER
RD

LAN C ASTE R
AVE

INNIS RD

LOCKVILLE RD

P ITT S BU R GH DR

HO
UK

 RD

G EMIN I PL

WATKINS RD

PEAC HB LOW R D

G R EENLA W N AV E

L EON ARD SB U RG R D

W M O UN D ST

BR
UC

K 
ST

M A IN R D

GORSUCH RD

DAV IDSO N R D

AIRPORT RD

CONCORD RD
REFUGEE RD NW

CEMETERY RD

S L
IB

ER
TY

 ST

OL IV E GR EEN R D

FR
ED

RI
CK

S
RD

SU
MM

IT 
RD

 SW

H AR RISBUR G LON D O N RD

RO
ME

 CO
RN

ER
S R

D

E NORTH BROADWAY

W SCHR OCK R D

OBETZ RD

ROS EHILL
RD

SCIOTO DA RB Y CR EEK R D

CU
RT

I S
RD

LUKENS RD

BA
RN

ET
T R

D

HALL RD

CLIME RD
N

K ILB O U RN E R D

MI
LN

OR
 R

D

S H
IG

H 
ST

PA

N HAN D LE
RD

CO
ND

IT 
RD

H AVEN S C OR NER S R D

DAVID RD

DEMPSEY RD

CA
RR

OL
L-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

S LIBERTY ST

HILL
 RD

NOE
BIX BY RD

M ILL S R D HARTFORD RD

B ER L IN STATION R D

LANE RD

GR OVEPO RT R D

MONKEY HOLLOW RD

ZUBER RD

HA R T R D

RING S R D

MARCY RD NW

D ILDINE R D

BLACKS RD

WALNUT ST
M U IR FIEL D

DR

WILSON RD

MEREDITH STATE RD

BR IND LE RD

FO NTANELLE R D

HAYES RD

CL
AY

PO
OL

 RD

SLOUGH RD NW

STOVER RD

FANCHER RD

DAV IS R D

G ARDN ER RD

N
TH

RE
E

B'
S

&
K

R D

N 
CO

UN
TY

 LI
NE

 R
D

N OLD 3 C HW Y

O

RE
GO

N
RD

TH
OM

AS
 R

D

N GALENA RD

COUNTY HOME RD

BEATTY RD

KROPP RD

HOUCHARD RD

HE ADLE YS M ILL RD
SW

COOVER RD

STEAMTOWN RD

WILSON RD NW

JONES
R D

TAW AY R D

ST
EIT

Z R
D

PATTE RS O N RD

HU
NT

LE
Y

RD

N
H IGH

ST

S AW
M

ILL
P K WY

OL
E N

TA
NG

Y
R I

VE
R

RD

AL T ON
&

DARBY
CREEK

RD

COLE
RD

ST
EL

ZE
R 

RD

FR ANTZ
R D

AMITY RD

KENNY
RD

N HAGUE AVE

HO
LT

 RD

N
YE

AR
LI

N G
R D

SA
WM

ILL
 R

D

AM
AN

DA
-N

OR
TH

ER
N 

RD
 N

W

BA
BB

ITT
 RD

M
IN

K
ST

SW

RE
ED

 RD

WILCOX RD

W ORTH
IN

GTO
N

RD

PI
CK

E R
I N

G T
O N

R D
N W

LONDONR D

AFRICA RD

DUNHA M
RD

LA
CK

EY
 OL

D S
TA

TE
 RD

TRE
MONT R

D

N C
AS

SA
DY

 AV
E

TR
OY

 RD
OSTRA NDER RD

GE
ND

ER
 RD

WA R R ENS BU RG R D

RE
YN

O L
DS

BU
RG

-N
EW

AL
BA

N Y
R D

LIN
W

OR
T H

RD

L E A P
R

D

HI LL IA R D
R O

M
ER D

GA
LL

O W
AY

RD

S
UN

BU
RY

RD

FLI
NT

 RD

CO
UR

TR
IG

HT
 R

D

S G A L ENA RD

AL
TO

N
RD

M
IL

LE
R-

PA
UL

RD
A L UM

CR EE K
D R

N WILSON RD

WALK ER RD

POST RD

BR
ICE

 RD

S O
LD

 ST
AT

E R
D

SMOTHERS RD

L

O NG RD

ST
YG

LE
R R

D 
N

SS
PR

I N
G

R D
N 

JA
ME

S R
D

PO N TIUS
RD

N
OL

D
S T

AT
E

RD

BO
WE

N 
RD

SCHLEPPI RD

AV
ER

Y
R D

LEPPERT RD

ELLI OTTRD

RED
BA

NK
RD

MC
NA

UG
HT

EN
 RD

LOTT
RD

ASHLEY
R D

RIC
HA

RD
SO

N 
RD

L A
W

R EN
CE

RD

N 
WA

GG
ON

ER
 R

D

CE
DA

R H
ILL

 RD
 N

W

UL
R Y

R
D

BO
WE

N 
RD

 N
W

SC
HO

TT
 R

D

CA
R T

ER
'S

CO
RN

E R
RD

B I
GG

E R
T R

D

H ARL EM
R D

PENN R D

YO
RK

 RD
 SW

DELAWARE

DELAWARE

FA
IRF

IEL
D

LIC
KIN

G
FR

AN
KL

IN

DELAWARE

FRANKLIN

1333

26
34

3109

17
98

GALENA

OSTRANDER

ASHLEY

GROVEPORT

GAHANNA

BEXLEY

WHITEHALL

RIVERLEA

URBANCREST

VALLEYVIEW

OBETZ

GRANDVIEW
HEIGHTS

BRICE

MINERVA
PARK

PATASKALA

HILLIARD

CANAL
WINCHESTER

LITHOPOLIS

REYNOLDSBURG

SHAWNEE
HILLS

LOCKBOURNEHARRISBURG

DUBLIN

WORTHINGTON

WESTERVILLE

GROVE
CITY

NEW
ALBANY

UPPER
ARLINGTON

COLUMBUS

PICKERINGTON

POWELL

SUNBURY

DELAWARE

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
! !

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!!!!!!!

E GOODALE ST

E MAIN ST

N HIGH ST

PA
RS

ON
S A

VE

HAMILTON PARK

BRYDEN RD

MT VERNON AVE

CLEVELAND AVE

SULLIVANT AVE

S FRONT ST

E GAY ST

S GLENWOOD AVE
S CYPRESS AVE

E TOWN ST

E MOUND ST

S HARTFORD AVE

VINE ST

S 3RD ST

E STATE ST

NEILAVE

N FRONT ST
S 2ND ST

S GRUBB ST

E LONG ST
LONG ST
E SPRING ST

MCKINLEY AVE

THOMAS AVE

MARCONI BLVD

N GRANT AVE

TWI N R IV E
RS

DR

£¤40

£¤62

£¤33

£¤23
§̈¦71

§̈¦670

§̈¦701333

2634
DOWNTOWN   COLUMBUS

Mid-Ohio  Regio n a l Pla n n in g Co m m issio n
111 Liberty Street

Co lum bus, Ohio  43215
614.228.2663
Decem ber 2015

Plea se check www.m o rpc.o rg fo r
upda tes to  this m a p a n d pro ject listin g.

SFY 2016-2019
Tra n spo rta tio n  Im pro vem en t Pro gra m

Resolution T-21-15
Amendment to the TIP
Project Location Map

±
0 3 6

Miles

The information shown on this map is compiled from various
sources available to us which we believe to be reliable.

n:\arcgis\core\tip\2016_2019\tip amndmt t-21-15.mxd nov15

This m a p prepa red in
co o pera tio n  with the
U.S. Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ’s Federa l
Highwa y Adm in istra tio n
a n d Federa l Tra n sit

Adm in istra tio n , the Ohio
Depa rtm en t o f

Tra n spo rta tio n ,  a n d
lo ca l co m m un ities.

Major Widening
New Road

New Interchange
Minor Widening/Safety Improvement

Interchange Modification
Intersection Modification

Maintenance/Resurfacing
Bridge Repair/Replacement

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Streetscape/Study/Other
Bikeway/Sidewalk/Transit
Streetscape/Study/Other

MORPC Project Identification

Construction Phase
FY 2016 - 2019

Construction Phase
after FY 2019

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

#*

!(

!(
#*

!(

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

!(

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

(Construction not part of TIP)

")

")

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

Planning Area

100 100100 100 100 100100 100

#*#*

ID Project
2777 COTA 2016 Bus Replacement
2787 COTA 2016 Paratransit Replacement
3108 Regional Pedestrian Signals

Unmapped Projects



RESOLUTION T-21-15 

 

“AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution  

T-12-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Transit Authority has requested the modification of projects on the 

2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, Etna Township has requested the modification of one project on the 2016-2019 TIP as 

shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) has requested the addition and 

modification of projects on the 2016-2019 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on November 30, 2015, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on December 2, 2015, recommended approval of 

this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2016-2019 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2016-2019 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent air quality conformity 

approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 



Resolution T-21-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: 

 Amended Project Information for the SFY 2016-2019 TIP 



Resolution T-21-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 94357 TIP ID: 2634 MTP ID:  12

Project Type(s): Transit Expansion Capital Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Cleveland Ave BRT- Length (mi.): 15

Right-of-Way $3,124,277Sec 53092016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Cleveland Ave BRT, Transit Expansion Capital, CMAX Bus Rapid Transit on Cleveland Ave from Downtown to 

Polaris Parkway/Africa Rd - PE, NEPA ROW, Con including SR-161 Transit Center and Northern Lights P & R and 

purchase of 15 40’ CNG Buses

Modify existing facilities. 

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Right-of-Way $781,069Local2016

Construction $6,076,917Sec 53092016

Construction $937,896Local2016

Construction $581,334Local-Transit2016

Purchase $7,324,800Sec 53092017

Purchase $1,831,200Local-Transit2017

Construction $20,928,014Sec 53092017

Construction $5,232,003Local-Transit2017

Total: $46,817,510

Agency: COTA PID: 95016 TIP ID: 2777 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Replacement Capital Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA 2016 Bus Replacement- Length (mi.):

Other $1,017,962CMAQ-S2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 2016 Bus Replacement, Transit Replacement Capital, total of 19 buses. MORPC-attributable CMAQ funds are 

for 1 CNG-powered replacement bus.

Not applicable. 

Bicycle racks. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $5,678,493Sec 53072016

Other $400,388CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Other $254,491Local2016

Other $1,519,721Local-Transit2016

Total: $8,871,055

Wednesday, December 02, 2015 Page 1 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-21-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 95038 TIP ID: 2787 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Replacement Capital Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA 2016 Paratransit Replacement- Length (mi.):

Other $1,176,000Sec 53072016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 2016 Paratransit Replacement, Transit Replacement Capital, 20 Vehicles. 11.12.04

No information provided.

No information provided.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Other $294,000Local-Transit2016

Total: $1,470,000

Agency: Etna Township PID: 90385 TIP ID: 1798 MTP ID:  871

Project Type(s): Minor Widening/Signalization Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: LIC-TR169-04.60 Length (mi.): 0.61

PE-Environmental Study $7,278STP-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Taylor Rd from Old Taylor Rd to 475' S of Windsor Dr, Minor Widening from 2 lanes to 3 lanes & Signalization, with a 

new signal at Palmer Rd

Sidewalk on 2 sides. 8' sidewalk on west side; 5' sidewalk on east side. 1.22 mi. added to ped network.

Other. 8' sidewalk on west side. 0.61 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Environmental Study $1,819Local2016

Right-of-Way $32,000CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $196,640STP-M2016 MORPC Funds

Right-of-Way $226,273Local2016

Construction $280,590SCIP2016

Construction $2,812,921CMAQ-M2016 MORPC Funds

Construction $230,370Local-Other2016

Construction $943,362Local2016

Total: $4,731,253

Wednesday, December 02, 2015 Page 2 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-21-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 101775 TIP ID: 3109 MTP ID:  775

Project Type(s): Preliminary Engineering Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-SR161-05.77 Length (mi.): 2.89

PE-Environmental Study $120,000State2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

SR-161 from Sawmill Rd to Olentangy River Rd, Preliminary Engineering, to identify feasible improvements among 

RR grade separation, widening, ped/bike facilities, intersection modifications & various safety improvements.

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE-Environmental Study $30,000STP-M2016 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

PE-Environmental Study $450,000Local2016

Total: $600,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 101844 TIP ID: 3108 MTP ID:  992

Project Type(s): Signals Air Quality: Exempt

Co-Route-Sec: D06-Regional Pedestrian Signals- Length (mi.):

PE-Detailed Design $41,213HSIP2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Regional Pedestrian Signals, Signals, Upgrade crosswalks, install pedestrian count down signals and RRFBs at 

various locations in 11 jurisdictions in Franklin, Delaware, and Fairfield counties.

Pedestrian signals. 

None. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Construction $927,000HSIP2017

Construction $103,000STP-M2017 MORPC Funds

Total: $1,071,213

Wednesday, December 02, 2015 Page 3 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



Resolution T-21-15

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 77372 TIP ID: 1333 MTP ID:  1155

Project Type(s): Major Widening/Interchange Modification Air Quality: System Analyzed

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR070-12.68 (Proj 4A) Length (mi.): 2.15

Right-of-Way $5,400,000IM2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-70/I-71 Innerbelt (Phase 4A) from W of Scioto River to E of High St, Major Widening & Interchange Modification, 

Interchange Reconfiguration Project.

EB I-70 realignment from I-71/SR-315 accessing downtown Columbus.

Includes work on Mound, Fulton, Fron

Modify existing facilities. Add/replace sidewalks on the block comprising Fulton, High, Livingston and Front. Ped 

signals and crosswalks at signalized intersections.

Bicycle lanes. New bike lanes westbound on Fulton from High to Front and eastbound on Livingston from Front to 

High. 0.2 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Right-of-Way $600,000State2016

Construction $3,330,000IM2017

Construction $117,020,000NHPP2017

Construction $17,750,000State2017

Construction $3,779,736STP-M2017 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

Construction $944,934Local2017

Total: $148,824,670

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

CMAQ-M Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to MORPC $3,245,309

CMAQ-S Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to the State $1,017,962

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $968,213

IM Interstate Maintenance $8,730,000

Local Local Public Agency $4,539,845

Local-Other Local Public Agency Funds or Other Source $230,370

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $9,458,258

NHPP National Highway Performance Program $117,020,000

SCIP State Capital Improvements Program (Ohio Public Works Cmsn.) $280,590

Sec 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $6,854,493

Sec 5309 Transit Discretionary Funds $37,454,008

State State Transportation Funds $18,470,000

STP-M Surface Transportation Program, Attributable to MORPC $4,116,654

Grand Total $212,385,701

Wednesday, December 02, 2015 Page 4 of 4

Funds in FYs prior to 2016 are not included in this report nor in the 2016-2019 Transportation Improvement Program.



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Steve Campbell, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

 

DATE: 

 

December 4, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 20-15: "ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2016 

PUBLIC POLICY AGENDA" 

 

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission’s 

(MORPC) 2016 Public Policy Agenda. A working group consisting of members 

of MORPC’s Board and the Regional Policy Roundtable collaborated to create 

a robust and well-defined public policy agenda. It consists of strategic 

initiatives and collaborative efforts that directly represent the interests and 

concerns of Central Ohio.   

 

The Public Policy Agenda was first presented and approved by the Regional 

Policy Roundtable at its October meeting. The agenda was then presented to 

the MORPC Commission in November. MORPC Commission members could 

provide additional feedback to the agenda through November 18, 2015. 

 

The 2016 Public Policy Agenda serves as a framework for MORPC’s staff, 

members, and government affairs consultant. The Public Policy Agenda was 

developed to implement a successful advocacy program and educate 

policymakers and community leaders about the work, goals, and impact of 

MORPC. It is a living document that will evolve as important changes and 

issues arise in the region. 
 

Attachment:  Resolution 20-15 



RESOLUTION 20-15 

 

“ADOPTION OF MORPC’S 2016 PUBLIC POLICY AGENDA” 

 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the  

Regional Policy Roundtable collaborated to create a robust and well-defined 2016 Public Policy  

Agenda; and 

 

WHEREAS, it describes MORPC’s initiatives and collaborative efforts for the year 2016, which  

directly relate to its mission, goals, and objectives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Public Policy Agenda provides a framework to advocate for policies that  

encourage making Central Ohio more competitive in a global marketplace while improving the quality 

of life in Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Public Policy Agenda provides direction to MORPC members and staff in order 

to act in concert with those initiatives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Public Policy Agenda was designed to address important public policy issues 

and legislation that occur throughout the year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2016 Public Policy Agenda will help MORPC be a leader in regional, state, and na-

tional policies; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2016 Public Policy Agenda. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: December 10, 2015 

Submitted by: Steve Campbell, City of Columbus, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

Prepared by:  Laura Koprowski, Director of Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: January 1, 2016 

Attachment:  2016 Public Policy Agenda 



 

 

1 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  
2016 Public Policy Agenda 

 

Lead–Opportunities for legislative and public 

policy leadership 
Goal 1: Promote regionalism at the local, state, and federal levels of 

government fostering economic prosperity, efficient use of resources, 

and a high quality of life for Central Ohio residents.  

 Advocate for policies and legislation that encourage local governments to collaborate and 

share services to make local governments fiscally stronger, more effective, and efficient in 

serving the public. 

 Promote insight2050 and advocate for policies and legislation that will provide Central Ohio 

with the needed tools and resources to plan for the expected increase of 500,000 people by 

2050. 

 Highlight the valuable roles, duties and rights that local governments have in services to 

residents, quality of life, and economic prosperity.   

 Advance Federal and State tax and budget policies that balance the promotion of economic 

growth, while also ensuring the ability to provide vital local government services to residents. 

 Work with our regional partners to identify significant projects and grant opportunities to 

benefit the region. 

 Position MORPC as a leading resource and innovator in regional planning strategies. 

 Promote policies, programs, and funding to ensure our region's transportation, fiber, water, 

sewer, and material management infrastructure are well maintained, affordable, vital, and 

resilient. 

 

Goal 2: Achieve an advanced and exceptional transportation system 

that connects Central Ohio's people and products to the world. 

 Seek additional revenue and innovative long-term funding mechanisms for transportation at 

local, state, and federal levels. 

 Advocate for a long-term federal transportation bill. 

 Promote state designation and preserve federal recognition of metropolitan planning 

organizations and their regional approach to transportation planning and funding. 

 Advance the importance of the logistics industry to Central Ohio and support continued 

investments in the region's "inland port" intermodal, rail, air, and other freight facilities. 

 Support new and existing legislation and policies that measurably improve transportation 

safety. 



 

 

2 

 

 Advocate for an advanced, multi-modal transportation system that allows our residents, 

workforce, public agencies, and businesses effective and efficient public and private 

transportation choices to regional, national, and international markets. 

 Pursue policies and funding to expand workforce transportation options. 
 

Goal 3: Conserve and enhance the natural resources, water, air, and 

land in our growing region. 

 Advocate for innovative strategies to maintain air quality attainment, reduce emissions, and 

protect health by working with public and private partners. 

 Advocate for policies and funding to maintain and protect the quality and quantity of our 

water resources, balancing public and private sector interests, and traditional and new 

economic activities in our growing region. 

 Support and advocate for policies and funding for a timely clean-up and redevelopment of 

brownfields or vacant, blighted, or abandoned land and for the preservation of historic 

buildings in order to revitalize communities. 

 Pursue funding and policies to help protect and secure more parkland, wetlands, trails, and 

green space. 

 

Goal 4: Promote energy efficiency and an abundant supply of safe, 

reliable, and affordable sources of energy for our growing region. 

 Promote energy efficiency and conservation, as well as renewable and alternative energy. 

 Advocate for federal, state, and local policies that foster economic growth and resiliency by 

using new and traditional forms of energy. 

 Promote the importance of the benefits associated with energy efficiency policies, funding, 

and programs. 

 Support innovative funding tools for public agencies, businesses, and nonprofit organizations 

to finance energy infrastructure improvements. 

Collaborate - Opportunities to form coalitions 

with like-minded organizations 

Economic Development 

 Promote a robust economy for the region and active collaboration with JobsOhio, 

Columbus2020, business organizations, and local governments to pursue national and state 

policies and funding to advance economic development. 

 Encourage local governments to focus job attraction incentives on new jobs and investment 

to the region. 

 Promote local food systems, food security, and state policies that create economic and 

environmental benefits of local foods systems and farmland preservation. 



 

 

3 

 

 Improve access to workforce training and to resources that enhance the financial stability of 

our region’s low and moderate income households. 

 Promote digital connectivity throughout the region, supporting public fiber optic 

communication and data infrastructure, and promoting cooperation and investment among 

members to assure sustainability and resiliency. 

 Pursue new tools and strategies for local governments to encourage new jobs and 

investment for the region. 

Sustainable Growth 

 Promote efficient and effective use and management of waste streams through reuse and 

recycling programs that reduce environmental impacts and contribute to the economic 

competitiveness of the region. 

 Assist in the establishment of fueling infrastructure for alternative fuel vehicles within the 

region. 

 Advocate for innovative land-use regulations and planning tools as a way to promote 

sustainable growth; maintain and reuse existing housing and commercial buildings; conserve 

environmentally sensitive areas; encourage farmland preservation; reduce energy 

consumption; provide transportation alternatives; and promote effective material 

management. 

 Promote the development of housing policies that support lifelong communities. 

 Support policies and incentives that encourage redevelopment and reinvestment in Central 

Ohio's neighborhoods and commercial districts. 

 Advocate for a broad spectrum of housing and home ownership options to meet the 

residential and work-force needs of communities throughout our growing region. 

 

Federal Funds 

 Support federal funding for defense installations, research, and other initiatives in Central 

Ohio.  

  

 Participate in coalitions and partnerships for MORPC local government members to 

understand, engage, and better position themselves for federal funding through 

appropriations, authorizations, bills, grants, and other possible options. 

Who We Are: 
 MORPC is a voluntary association of Central Ohio governments and regional organizations 

Public Policy Agenda: 
The 2016 Public Policy Agenda of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) is 

vital to the future of the over 2 million people we serve and represent in our 15 county 

member region. As one of the most dynamic and fastest growing regions in the country, 

Central Ohio is expecting dramatic changes in the next 20 years. Our population will 

increase by 500,000 people or 25 percent by 2050 while the rest of Ohio will experience a 3 



 

 

4 

 

percent decline. These figures imply significant change for all Central Ohio communities in 

the coming years. 

 

This strategic agenda is the collective voice and proactive framework MORPC uses to 

advocate the issues, policies, and interests of our communities at the state and federal 

levels of government. Our local government members are interested in developing 

innovative and responsive public policies and legislation that will foster economic prosperity, 

enhance the quality of life, and secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio.  

MORPC’s Public Policy Agenda is organized into two categories of Lead and Collaborate: 

 

 Lead  - Opportunities for legislative and public policy leadership by MORPC 

 Collaborate - Opportunities for MORPC to work closely with partners to advance 

shared interests and goals  

What We Do: 

 Create solutions to shared regional challenges 

 Explore opportunities for shared services among local governments 

 Serve as a regional information hub by providing demographics, maps, and tools to 

inform decisions 

 Convene local governments to prioritize regional transportation projects and seek 

funding 

 Provide valuable community services in the areas of energy and environment 

 

For more information contact: 

Laura Koprowski, Director of Public & Government Affairs 

lkoprowski@morpc.org 

614.233.4126 

Joseph Garrity, Public Affairs Coordinator 

jgarrity@morpc.org 

614.233.4127 

Bevan Schneck, Public Affairs Coordinator 

bschneck@morpc.org 

614.233.4130 

 




